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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRES

Review

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | would like to present
the Group’s financial results for the year ended 31 December 2011 to
our shareholders. During the period, the Group recorded turnover of
approximately RMB1,075 million, representing an increase of 18% compared
with 2010. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(“EBITDA”) were RMB212 million, slightly decreased by 1% from RMB214
million in 2010. Profit attributable to shareholders decreased by 8% to
RMB119 million. Basic earnings per share reached RMB24.6 cents, down
12% compared with RMB28.0 cents in 2010. To thank our shareholders for
their enduring support, the Board has proposed a final dividend of HK3.48
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2011. Together with the
interim dividend of HK1.20 cents per share, the total dividend for the year
was HK4.68 cents per share, compared with HK4.68 cents in the previous
year.
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2011 was a volatile year for the global economy. After experiencing the
systemic defaults in the global financial crisis in 2008-2009, which was
triggered by the subprime crisis in the U.S.,
systems around the world were still facing evolving systemic risks in 2011.
Recovery of the global economy was under threat due to the earthquake in
Japan, geopolitical instability in the Middle East, global inflation, downgrade
of the U.S. credit rating and European sovereign debt crisis and various
measures by different governments to help revive their respective economies.
The operating environment was more turbulent and more difficult to predict.
Fortunately, from the analysis of various full-year macro-economic data, the
demand for global necessities in this year has been recovering, though slowly
but steadily.

the financial and economic

Looking back at 2011, despite continuous high pressure from raw material
prices amid the high inflation and the worldwide recovery in the first half, the
Group adopted proactive resources management and flexible product pricing
strategy to secure solid year-on-year growth, with turnover for the first half
year increased by 32% and profit increased by 25%. Gross profit margin
was maintained at the same level as that of 2010, while the rising pressure
of raw materials and other production costs was mitigated. However, in the
second half, liquidity of the markets in China and overseas shrank in various
degrees due to the launch of China’s macro-economic control measures and
the deepening of Europe’s sovereign debt crisis. As a result, the Group faced
a completely different challenge in respect of raw materials and products as
compared to the first half. Fortunately, the Group was well prepared in its
financial and capital management and was able to maintain stable operations
with its ample cash-on-hand and multi-layered currencies and interest rates
measures, coupled with continuous perfection of internal control, helping
the Group steer clear from the impact of liquidity crunch in the market and
sustaining stable operation. Nevertheless, in the second half of this financial
year, the Group’s revenue shrank by 9% compared to the first half as a result
of large-scale destocking by downstream customers to relieve their capital
pressure and lower their operational risk following the liquidity crunch of
banks in Europe and the U.S. The result was a temporary fall in the demand
for upstream products from the Group in the supply chain, with certain
products recording negative growth, compared with the first half of the year.
Also, the price of the Group’s key raw material gum turpentine had a sharp
fall in a short time due to China’s macro-economic control measures causing
monetary tightening and downstream customers temporarily cutting inventory
levels and causing panic. The price of gum turpentine has fallen more than a
half from the historic high levels in the beginning of the year. As raw material
prices have declined sharply, the average selling price of the Group’s core
aroma chemicals business also fell under a new pricing mechanism, resulting
in the negative impact on the results of the second half. This resulted in a net
increase in revenue by 18% as compared to 2010.
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Due to the sharp volatility of raw materials during the year, the market price of
turpentine and related finished products has dropped significantly since the
second half of 2011. Based on the actual market condition, management has
assessed the net realisable value of the Group's inventories, and a provision
for impairment of inventories of RMB17.2 million has been made for the year
ended 31 December 2011. As the provision was recognised in “cost of sales”
in the consolidated income statement, it has a negative impact of 1.6% on the
Group's gross profit margin for the year under review. While in March 2012,
the market prices of these products have increased. This demonstrates the
Groups' ability to maintain a stable profitability under the turbulent operating
environment.

During the year, the Group mainly produced aroma chemical products which
are turpentine-based and continued to develop petroleum-based products.
Sales of woody and grassy derivative aroma chemicals and various food
additives launched in recent years grew consistently, accounting for more
than 20% of the Group’s total revenue for the year. Apart from expanding
its product mix, the Group continued to strengthen its co-operation and
interaction with customers during the year, adhering to the business practice
of stable supply, timely delivery and top quality. To win the trust and support
from its customers, the Group also provided value-added service of total
solutions including research and development, procurement, production and
supply chain management to its customers.

During the period under review, labor costs and management staff wages in
the mainland increased by over 28% due to the additional recruitment of new
staff for the completion of Changtai Plant. Meanwhile, rising inflation has led
to the sharp increase of indirect costs, management expenses and related
welfare expenses, eroding part of the Group’s gross profit. Nevertheless, the
Group’s effort in enhancing product value, lifting operational efficiency and
stringently controlling costs paid off, mitigating the negative impact of rising
costs to the minimum.

In the year under review, the Group continued to strengthen its financial
position. As at 31 December 2011, total net cash, being cash and cash
equivalents less total borrowings, amounted to RMB168 million, with full-
year net cash from operating activities of approximately RMB61.9 million
as compared to RMB44.4 million in the corresponding period last year.
Meanwhile, gearing ratio lowered from 40.8% last year to 38.5%. The
continuous improvement of the Group’s financial management enabled the
Group to remain financially sound at a time of extreme volatility in raw material
costs. The Group will continue to enhance its financial position, particularly in
view of the further tightening of liquidity of banks around the world.
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Outlook

Although the economic recovery of the global economy, in particular Europe
and the U.S., is beset by uncertainties, the actual market demand for daily
necessities such as the Group’s products is still growing steadily. The
panic inventory destocking in the second half of 2011 should be eased off
in the upcoming years, as long as the euro-zone debt crisis does not get
out of control under the cooperation of countries, market liquidity stays
at reasonable levels and a majority of enterprises gradually regain their
confidence to continue operation. In addition, development of emerging
markets will continue to drive the development of the global flavor and
fragrance industry. Overall, the Group is optimistic towards the operation
in the upcoming year and will closely monitor market changes and remain
proactive. Also, the Group has entered a mature phase in respect of
human resources, international markets, supply chain management, green
chemical technology and production, after over 10 years in the business
development. The Group is in a strong position to cope with the challenge
and sustain development in a time of turbulence of the international economic
environment.

In China, prices of gum turpentine, as the Group’s key raw material and
renewable resource, were unprecedentedly volatile in the last 2-3 years,
offering the Group the opportunity to accelerate vertical integration of the
turpentine supply chain in 2012.

The Group has recently started to plan major product lines, and targets
to put the plan into implementation in 2012. The Group will further reduce
cost of its aroma chemicals (fragrance) business, as a key component of
household, personal health care and hygiene consumer products, to raise
its competitiveness. The Group will seek strategic partnership to expand its
product mix to important areas including food and oral hygiene. As a part
of extending the industry value chain, providing solutions to the household
and hygiene industry will also become a focus for us. In addition, we are also
developing chemicals with pharmaceutical and other functions among the
product mix of the turpentine based value chain. All these will help the Group
secure strategic advantages in the development of the turpentine based
value chain and increase for a larger global market share. With regard to new
product mix using petroleum-chemicals as raw material, the Group will strive
for breakthroughs, to prepare a solid foundation for future expansion.
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In the upcoming year, the Group will strive to increase the efficiency of
existing production facilities, while optimizing the operating system at the
same time. In respect of production facilities, the Group expects the new
Changtai Plant will have increased production capacity, the cooperation plant
in Huanggang Hubei will basically complete construction and the main plant
in Haicang will step up technological upgrade. In respect of technological
upgrade, not only will the new generation “Super-jet” reaction technology be
gradually used in production in phases, other production process of various
products will also gradually be optimized. It is expected that the production
capacity and efficiency will be enhanced in various aspects of the operating
system, while effectively reducing energy and raw material consumption. All
these upgrading efforts will further reduce the cost of production, significantly
increase competitiveness of the Group, and effectively reduce the carbon
footprint, making greater contribution for sustainable development in the
industry.

Although the global economy remained volatile in 2011, the global food
and food additives industry is doing well against an inflationary background.
The food business of the Group’s downstream customers was recording
double-digit growth and this upward trend is expected to be maintained in
the upcoming year. Therefore, the Group is confident in increasing efforts
in the development of the natural extracts and food additives business,
aiming at extension of downstream asset chain with its own brand, while
paying attention to food safety, natural, organic and green issues. The Group
expects to increase market share and enhance profitability at the same time.

The Group’s past stable development was mainly achieved through
organic growth. The Group has effortlessly explored merger and acquisition
opportunities in the past few years, with the principle that there should be
synergies with the Group’s industry strategy and the potential value of the
Group could be fully uncovered. Today, the Group’s industrial layout has
provided the conditions for us to achieve the related goals in the upcoming
years, with confidence. In the past decade, the industry has witnessed the
startup stage of the Group and its steady growth in the aroma chemicals
business. The next decade will be an era of sustainable growth for EcoGreen.
| am full of confidence and expectation for the future of the Group.
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| believe that through our collective efforts, the Group will achieve greater
business growth, and eventually establish itself as a major global aroma
chemical supplier and an influential intermediate technology provider. We
will also be a leading supplier of safe food products which complies with
international food safety standards. All these will allow us to generate greater
returns for our shareholders.

Yang Yirong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012
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Final Dividend

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK3.48 cent (2010: HK3.8 cents)
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2011. Together with
the interim dividend of HK1.2 cents (2010: HKO0.88 cents) per share (having
been paid on 21 October 2011), the total dividend for the year ended 31
December 2011 amounted to HK4.68 cents (2010: HK4.68 cents) per share,
representing a total of RMB18.4 million (2010: RMB19.0 million). Subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held
on 28 June 2012, the proposed final dividend will be paid on or around 3
August 2012.

Closure of Register of Members
The transfer books and register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 26 June 2012 to Thursday, 28 June 2012 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be effected, for the
purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
,'-Tric_or_ Tengis Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Janch ng Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 25 June 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREF W&

Closure of Register of Members (continued)

The transfer books and register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 9 July 2012 to Wednesday, 11 July 2012 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited
at the aforementioned address not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 6 July
2012.

Business Review

The Group derives its revenue primarily from the manufacturing and trading
businesses. The manufacturing business includes the production and sales of
aroma chemicals, natural extracts and intermediates. Breakdown of revenue
by operating segments is as follow:
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RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Revenue ON
Manufacturing HE 938,412 828,351
Resource management and trading BREZLEE S 136,276 79,900
Total revenue PNt 1,074,688 908,251
A further breakdown of turnover by products are as follows: EmEEBHOWNET :

Turnover

RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total
SEoe 1h#azE Tt IH4a%E
AR# AL AR EXvisd
Manufacturing £E

Aroma chemicals SENER 734,334 68% 641,046 70%
Natural extracts KATREY 138,614 13% 127,032 14%
Intermediates =ayiSk 65,464 6% 60,273 7%
938,412 87% 828,351 91%
Resource management and trading &REXEES 136,276 13% 79,900 9%

Turnover = 2] 1,074,688 100% 908,251
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Business Review

In 2011, both the aroma chemicals business and flavour chemicals business
recorded a slight growth. The Group’s turnover for the year was RMB1,075
million, an increase of 18% from the previous year. Excluding contributions
from the supplementary resource management and trading business, sales
of our three major products has increased by 13%. Profit attributable to
shareholders dropped to RMB119 million by 8% from the previous year.
Basic earmnings per share were approximately RMB24.6 cents.

Manufacturing

(i) Aroma Chemicals
For the year ended 31 December 2011, turnover of aroma chemicals
increased by 15% to RMB734 million (2010: RMB641 million),
accounting for 68% of the Group’s turnover (2010: 70%) and a
gross profit margin of 22.1% (2010: 24.3%). The product price of
Dihydromyrcenol, as an important contributor of the aroma chemicals
business, was adjusted downward in the second half due to the sharp
decline of raw material prices. The total sales of Dihydromyrcenol was
slightly reduced by 3% from the previous year.

Aroma Chemicals continued to be the Group’s core products
during the year under review, and constituted a stable and major
income source for the Group. Aroma chemicals are primarily used as
functional ingredients and key components in many daily consumer
goods, with a combined positive effect of its diversified applications
and the development in the emerging markets, market demand
continued to rise, the aroma chemical products continued to be the
major growth driver of the Group’s operation. In addition, certain
aroma and food flavour chemicals launching lately were further
recognized by the customers and well received in the market. The
new series of products have already contributed RMB230 million
(2010: RMB196 million) to the Group’s revenue, with a profit margin
amounted to approximately 30%, which is higher than the profit
margin of our fragrance chemical products and represents one of the
sources in the growth of Group’s profitability.

(ii) Natural Extracts
In respect of the Natural Extracts products, apart from existing natural
pharmaceutical raw materials, the Group has been actively engaged
in the development of food additives business for the production of
food ingredients, fast food, frozen food and pet nutrition food, which
is produced with purification and bio-conversion technologies from
natural produces. Natural extracts mainly include seafood, meat and

- mushroom extracts.
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Business Review (continued)

Manufacturing (continued)

(ii) Natural Extracts (continued)
During the year under review, the Group’s natural extract products
maintained steady growth. Turnover from sales of Natural Extracts
increased by 9% to RMB138 million (2010: RMB127 million),
accounting for 13% (2010: 14%) of the Group’s sales. Gross profit
margin amounted to 26.1%, (2010: 23.8%). This is due to the
scarcity of resources of certain products, which have high gross profit
margins.

(iii) Intermediates
Besides the chiral pharmaceuticals and intermediates, the Group
also applies similar advanced technologies of synthesis to produce
agrochemical intermediates, which will later be turned into the kind of
eco-pesticide.

During the year under review, turnover increased by 9% year-on-
year to RMB65.5 million (2010: RMB60.3 million), accounting for 6%
(2010: 7%) of the Group’s sales. Gross profit margin was 46.4% (2010:
48.9%).

Resource management and trading business

This business is a necessary complement to the three main business
categories listed above, in particular the aroma chemicals business. The
Group has been striving for the integration of upstream turpentine resources
and expansion of supply chain management, with a view of systemic
competitiveness and meeting customer needs more effectively. This business
mainly includes the trading operation of gum rosin, gum turpentine and other
special botanic essential oils and their by-products. During the year, revenue
from the resources management and trading increased by 71% to RMB136
million, accounting for 13% of the Group’s revenue. The contribution to gross
profit was approximately RMB7.88 million.

Financial Review

Turnover

The Group’s recorded stable growth of 18% in its turnover for the year ended
31 December 2011, which amounted to RMB1,075 million. The Group’s
turnover in the first half was encouraging, with an increase by 32% compared
with the last corresponding period. In the second half, raw material prices fell
by almost 50% following the temporary destocking of downstream customers
and sharp decline of raw material prices, triggering the decline in the prices of
the Group’s products. The inevitable downward adjustment of the prices of
the Group’s products resulted in the mere 6% increase of the turnover in the
second half, compared with the corresponding period.
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Financial Review (continued)

Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit totaled RMB237
million, increased by 5%. Gross profit margin decreased from 24.7% in 2010
10 22.0% in 2011. In light of the sharp volatility of cost of raw materials during
the year, the market price of turpentine and related finished products has
dropped significantly since the second half of 2011. Based on the actual
market condition, management has assessed the net realisable value of
the Group’s inventories, and a provision for impairment of inventories of
RMB17.2 million has been made for the year ended 31 December 2011. As
the provision was recognised in “cost of sales” in the consolidated income
statement, it has a negative impact of 1.6% on the Group’s gross profit
margin for the year under review.

By the products category, the gross profit margin of aroma chemicals
decreased from 24.3% in 2010 to 22.4% in 2011, while natural extracts
increased from 23.8% in 2010 to 26.1% this year. The profit margin of
intermediates decreased from 48.9% in 2010 to 46.4% in 2011. The gross
profit margin of resource management and trading products decreased from
11.3% in 2010 to 5.8% in 2011.

Operating Income and Expense

The selling and marketing expenses in 2010 accounted for 2.7% of the
Group’s turnover (2010: 2.6%). Under the Group’s effective cost-cutting
measures, the selling and marketing expenses to sales ratio remained stable.

In 2011, administrative expenses accounted for 4.5% of turnover (2010:
4.0%); a main reason of the increase was the increase in sales tax. In 2011,
domestic and foreign enterprises received the same national treatment and
local governments additionally taxed foreign enterprises urban maintenance
and construction tax, and educational tax, resulting in additional expenses of
RMB4.3 million, or 0.4% of turnover. In addition, the recruitment of extra staff
for the new plant and the adjusted wages due to prices inflation led to the
28% increase of staff-related expenses.

Finance Costs - Net

As a significant portion of the Group’s borrowings is denominated in United
States dollars (“US dollars”), the depreciation of US dollars against Chinese
Renminbi has led to an exchange gain of RMB11.6 million (2010: RMB1.7
million). However, the higher interest rates for bank loans obtained in China
has resulted in an increase in finance cost; while at the same time, higher
interest income was earned from the bank deposits, resulting in an overall
drop in net finance cost by approximately RMB3.3 million as compared to last
[t
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Financial Review (continued)

Taxation

Tax expense of the Group in 2011 was RMB23.1 million (2010: RMB22.1
million). Effective tax rate of the Group is 16.3% (2010: 14.5%)

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year in 2011 was RMB119 million, representing a decrease of 8%
compared with RMB130 million in 2010. EBITDA for the year was RMB212
million, which is considered stable as compared to RMB214 million in 2010.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year under review, the Group’s primary source of funding mainly
included the cash generated from operating activities. For the year ended 31
December 2011, net cash generated from operating activities amounted to
RMB61.9 million (2010: RMB44.4 million). The Group had net cash used in
investing activities of RMB32.8 million (2010: RMB56.9 million). During the
year under review, the net cash inflow from financing activities amounted to
RMB28.3 million (2010: net cash inflow of RMB22.2 million).

As at 31 December 2011, the average inventory turnover days, average trade
receivable turnover days and average trade payable turnover days were 58
days, 112 days and 87 days respectively (2010: 52 days, 100 days and 61
days).

The Group’s financial position remains very solid and healthy during the
year under review. As at 31 December 2011, the net current assets and
the current ratio of the Group were approximately RMB755 million (2010:
RMB695 million) and 2.3 (2010: 2.8) respectively.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB414 million (2010: RMB390 million). Among them, outstanding short-
term borrowings amounted to RMB299 million (2010: RMB206 million). As at
31 December 2011, the Group’s ratio of total borrowings to total equity, was
approximately 38.3% (2010: 40.8%) and the Group’s net cash balance, being
cash and cash equivalents less borrowings amounted to RMB168 million
(2010: RMB134 million).

With the positive cash inflow from the Group’s operations, its available
banking facilities and its existing cash resources, the Group has very strong
liquidity and sufficient financial resources to meet its commitments, working
capital requirements and future investments for expansion.
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Financial Review (continued)

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2011, bank deposits of RMB111 million (2010: RMB58.0
million) were pledged to secure the Group’s bills payable.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RMB12.2 million (2010: RMB25.2 million) in respect of product
development projects and the acquisition of land use rights.

Treasury Policies and Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
The Group’s assets, liabilities, revenues and transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars
with its operation mainly in the PRC. As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s
borrowings of approximately RMB180 million and RMB219 million were
denominated in Renminbi and United States dollars, respectively.

The Group’s foremost exposure to the foreign exchange fluctuations was
caused by the revaluation of Renminbi during the year under review. The
Group’s export sales are, in majority, denominated in United States dollars.
Nevertheless, the Group has not experienced any material difficulties or
effects on its operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations in currency
exchange rates during the year. The Group will conduct periodic review
of its exposure to foreign exchange risk and may use proper financial
instrument and financing arrangement for hedging purpose when considered
appropriate.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 430 full-time employees, among
whom 424 were based in the PRC. For the year under review, the total
employment costs incurred for 2011 including directors’ emoluments
amounted to RMB37.0 million. The Group has established its human resources
policies and procedures with a view to deploy the incentives and rewards of
the remuneration system. The remuneration package offered to the staff is
appropriate for the duties and in line with the prevailing market terms. Staff
benefits, including medical coverage and provident funds, are provided to
employees. The Group has also established effective performance evaluation
system in which employees are properly rewarded on a performance-related
basis under the Group’s salary and bonus system. The Group has adopted
a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to the management, key technician and other eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
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The board of directors of EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group Ltd. (the
“Company”) (the “Board”) acknowledges the importance of and benefit from
good corporate governance practices and is committed to improving the
corporate governance practices in order to enhance better transparency
and to ensure that business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper manner to safeguard the interests of shareholders.

The Company has adopted and applied the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the then prevailing Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2011. The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure its continuous compliance with the CG Code. In the year
under review, the Company has complied with most of the Code Provisions
save for the deviations from the Code Provisions A.2.1. The following
summarises the Company’s corporate governance practices and explains
deviations, if any, from the CG Code.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the Group in
a responsible and effective manner. The Board provides leadership and
formulates strategic policies and plans of the Group with a view to enhancing
shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the Group are
delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Group, including:
objectives and overall strategies of the Group; annual budgets and financial
matters; equity related transactions such as issue of shares/options and
repurchase of shares; dividend; raising of capital loan; determination of major
business strategy; merger and acquisition; major investment; annual financial
budget in turnover, profitability and capital expenditure; review and approval
of financial performance and announcement; and matters as required by laws
and ordinance.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulation are followed.
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The Board (continued)

Responsibilities (continued)

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request
to the Board.

The Directors are continually updated with the regulatory requirements,
business activities and development of the Company to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities. Through regular Board meetings, all Directors are kept
abreast of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

The management has the obligation to supply the Board and the various
Committees with adequate information in a timely manner to enable the
members to make informed decisions. Each Director has separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management to acquire more
information than is volunteered by management and to make further enquiries
if necessary.

The functions delegated to management are periodically reviewed. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.

Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of nine members including five
Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director (“the NED”) and three
Independent Non-executive Directors (“the INED”). The Board’s composition
covers a balance of expertise, skills and industry experience so as to bring
in valuable contributions and advices for the development of the Group’s
business. The NED and INED together have substantial experience in fields of
auditing, legal matters, business, accounting, corporate internal control and
regulatory affairs. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all NED and INED make various contributions to the
effective direction of the Group.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of
his independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all INED to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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The Board (continued)

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. A total of 4
board meetings were held during the year. The individual attendance record
of each Director at the meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee
and the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out
below:

Name of Director

EEHES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman) SRR B ()
Mr. Gong Xionghui BEERB A A

Ms. Lu Jiahua ERELLT

Mr. Han Huan Guang BEEOLEE

Mr. Lin Zhigang (Note 1) PRERN A (T EET)
Mr. Lin Like (Note 2) M55 A (FE2)
NED FHITES

Mr. Feng Tao (Vice Chairman) RERE(BIEE)
INED BYFHITES
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen EwRaEiE

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John HEBLE

Mr. Lau Wang Yip Derrick (Note 3) BT S (B EES)
Mr. Zheng Lansun (Note 4) BEH TR ST (5E4)
Notes:

1 Appointed on 24 October 2011

)

) Resigned on 30 September 2011
3) Appointed on 10 June 2011

(4) Retired on 8 June 2011
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The Board (continued)

Board meetings (continued)

Notices of regular board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for
other Board meetings. Agenda and Board papers together with complete
and reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decision. Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction which involves
a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be
considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened board meeting.
The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Appointment, rotation and re-election of Directors

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of INED. The Board
reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Company. There were no meeting held
for the nomination of Directors during the year.

In accordance with the CG Code and the Company’s Articles of Association,

all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation once every three years and
being eligible, can offer themselves for re-election.
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The Board (continued)

Term of appointment of NED and INED

All NED and INED were appointed for an initial term of not more than
one year and will be renewable automatically for successive term of one
year until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party or the other. All NED and INED are subject
to retirement by rotation once every three years and are subject to
re-election.

Indemnification

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
actions against its Directors and officers. The Board reviews the extent of this
insurance annually.

Segregation of Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (“CEO”)

The Company has not yet adopted A.2.1. Under the code provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and CEO should be separate and would
not be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and CEO should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The Company does not presently have any officer with the title CEO. At
present, Mr. Yang Yirong, being the Chairman and the President of the
Company, is responsible for the strategic planning, formulation of overall
corporate development policy and running the business of the Group as well
as the duties of Chairman. The Board considers that, due to the nature and
extent of the Group’s operations, Mr. Yang is the most appropriate chief
executive because he possesses in-depth knowledge and experience in
fine chemicals business and is able to ensure the sustainable development
of the Group. Besides, he is the founder, the chairman and the controlling
shareholder of the Group since its establishment and till now. Notwithstanding
the above, the Board will review the current structure from time to time. When
at the appropriate time and if candidate with suitable leadership, knowledge,
skills and experience can be identified within or outside the Group, the
Company may make the necessary amendments.
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Board Committees

The Board has established two committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority
and duties.

The chairmen of the committees will report the findings and recommendations
of the committees to the Board after each meeting. The minutes of all
meetings of the committees are circulated to the Board for information.

Remuneration Committee

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
establishing a formal and transparent procedures for developing policy on
the remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior management, making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and senior management, ensuring the
remuneration packages are sufficient to attract and retain the Directors to run
the Company successfully, to avoid over-paying and ensure no Director or
any of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee met once to
review and consider the remuneration policy and packages, including any
discretionary management bonus of the Executive Directors and senior
management by reference to market conditions, performance of the Group
and the individual and corporate goals.

Audit Committee
The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process by reference
to the work performed by the external auditor, their fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; and

(©) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
= reporting system, internal control system and risk management
sysl‘em and associated prooedures 2
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held three meetings with
the senior management and the Company’s external auditor to review the
interim and annual financial statements, discuss internal controls matters and
the re-appointment of the external auditor. The Audit Committee has also
reviewed the Group’s accounting principles and practices, listing rules and
statutory compliance and financial reporting matters.

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen is the chairman of the Audit Committee and he
possesses recongised professional qualifications in accounting required by
the Listing Rules.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the Directors’
securities transactions on terms not less exacting than the required standard
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors and all the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with all the relevant requirements as set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The management provides such explanation and information to the Board to
facilitate an informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements which give a true and fair view and the Board is responsible for
presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments
and estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The Board was not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
Board has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system of the Group. The system includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, safeguards its assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensures the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensures compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to manage the risks
of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of the
Group’s objectives.

The Board periodically conducts review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal controls. The tasks include:

0} access and review selected aspects of the Group’s activities and
internal controls;

(ii) conduct regular comprehensive reviews of the practices, procedures
and internal controls of selected business and supporting units and
subsidiaries;

(iii) examine and investigate business ethics, conflicts of interest and
other company policy violations; and

(iv) report results of review to the senior management and make
recommendation where appropriate.

The Directors, through the Audit Committee and the engagement of an
independent internal audit consultancy firm, have conducted an annual review
of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company and
its subsidiaries. The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

External Auditor

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the
Company received approximately RMB1.73 million for audit services provided
to the Group. The external auditor did not provide any non-audit service to
the Group during the year under review.
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Communication with Shareholders and Investor
Relations

Details of the rights of shareholders and the procedures for conducting
a poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings. The chairman of a meeting will answer any
questions from shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. The annual general meeting enables the Company’s
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The chairman of the
Board and the chairman of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
have attended at the annual general meeting to be available to answer the
questions of the shareholders of the Company. Regular meetings are also
held with media, institutional investors and research analysts to provide them
the Group’s latest business development and non-price sensitive information.

To promote effective communication, extensive information about the
Company business is provided in its interim and annual reports, which
are sent to shareholders, analysts and interested parties. The Company
also maintains a corporate website on which comprehensive information,
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information of the
Group are provided.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. YANG Yirong

Chairman and President

Mr. Yang, aged 50, is the founder of the Group. He is responsible for strategic
planning and formulation of overall corporate development policy for the
Group. Mr. Yang holds a Bachelor’s degree in science, majoring in chemistry
from Huagiao University in 1982. Prior to founding the Group in 1994, Mr.
Yang has extensive experience in the fine chemical manufacturing and trading
and has more than ten years of experience in natural organic chemistry
research.

Mr. GONG Xionghui

Senior Vice President — Engineering Project Management

Mr. Gong, aged 48, is responsible for project construction and strategic
investment development. Mr. Gong holds a Master‘s degree in chemical
engineering from Xiamen University and has accumulated over 20 years of
experience in fine chemicals industry and qualified as an ISO 9000 auditor in
the PRC in 1998. He joined the Group in September 1999.

Ms. LU Jiahua

Senior Vice President — Group Financial Control

Member of Remuneration Committee

Ms. Lu, aged 45, oversees the finance and accounting and human resources
functions for the Group in the PRC. She has over 20 years of experience in
accounting, financial management, administration management and internal
auditing in a number of pharmaceutical and fine chemical manufacturing
enterprises. Ms. Lu holds a Bachelor’'s degree and a Master’s degree in
economics and corporate management from Xiamen University. She joined
the Group in April 2002.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. HAN Huan Guang

Senior Vice President — Group Strategic Investments and Capital Markets
Member of Remuneration Committee

Mr. Han, aged 50, responsible for Group strategic investments, capital
markets and investor relations. He graduated from Zhongshan University (-
111K E2) with a Bachelor's degree in biochemistry in 1982 and obtained his
Master’s degree in Business Administration from University of Technology,
Sydney, Australia in 1993. He has over 20 years’ experience in corporate
finance, merger and acquisition, infrastructure and new technology
developments, management of listed and non-listed companies in the
PRC and overseas. Over the years, he has been a Director, and then
Managing Director in China Everbright Medicine Co. Ltd. (a subsidiary of
China Everbright Holdings Group), Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. and in
other senior management positions in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland
companies. He has been appointed as a Councilor of the China Society of
Biotechnology, and also member of some professional associations in the
region. Mr. Han joined the Group in September 2005 as a non-executive
director, and became an executive director from May 2006.

Mr. LIN Zhigang

Vice President — Group’s Aroma Chemicals Business

Mr. Lin, aged 41, is responsible for the management of the Group’s operation
in aroma chemicals business. He holds a Bachelor’s degree of economics
obtained from Xiamen University. Prior to joining the Group in June 1996,
he worked in a foreign investment enterprise and has concrete experience
in sales and marketing management, business development and production
management.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. FENG Tao

Vice Chairman

Mr. Feng, aged 44, is the Chief Executive Officer of NewMargin Ventures
Capital Co. Ltd., which is a leading venture capital management company
in China. Commencing from 1999, Mr. Feng has been serving as the vice
president officer (83 1E) of The Foundation of Science & Technology for
Development of the State Planning Committee, State Economic & Trade
Commission of the PRC (FE#EARLMBEEREEE 5ZE 8 €) and Chinese
Academy of Sciences. As one of pClienters of venture-capital of China, Mr.
Feng possesses extensive experience and knowledge of both domestic and
overseas markets. Mr. Feng was awarded the title of “Top 10 most influential
venture capitalists in China” in the “Asia-Pacific Venture Capitalist Summit and

Biographical Details of Directors and

Most Influential Venture Capitalists in China Award Ceremony” in April 2005.
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. YAU Fook Chuen

Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Mr. Yau, aged 54, is a practising accountant and has over 19 years of
experience in public accountancy practice which covers company secretarial
service, accountancy, auditing and taxation. He is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yau is currently the proprietor of Yau &
Wong, Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director in February 2004.

Mr. WONG Yik Chung, John

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Mr. Wong, aged 45, among being the Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company, was also served as an Independent Non-executive Director of
Golden Resources Development International Limited, CDW Holdings Limited
and General Steel Holdings Inc, companies listed in Hong Kong, Singapore
and the United States respectively. He is a professional accountant by training
with more than 17 years of experience in auditing and corporate finance work,
with extensive exposure to the business enterprise in the PRC. Mr. Wong is
currently the director to TMF China, a firm provides a variety of professional
outsourcing solutions to an international client base investing in PRC. Mr.
Wong graduated from the University of Melbourne. He is a fellow member
of the Australian Society of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He also obtained a PRC Certificate
of Independent Directorship in 2002. He was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in February 2004.

Mr. LAU Wang Yip, Derrick

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Mr. Lau, aged 50, is the managing director of a financial institution. He
obtained a master degree of management science in accounting and he has
extensive experience in investment banking.
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Senior Management

Mr. XIE Rong Guo

Vice President — Strategic Resources Management

Mr. Xie, aged 49, Head of Strategic Resources Management Center. Since
he joined Ecogreen, Mr. Xie has been the management positions in purchase
department, logistic department and commercial department and the general
manager of strategic resources management. He has excellent professional
knowledge and rich experience in supply chain management and strategic
resources management.

Mr. Y1 Zhi Xiong

Vice President — Corporate Administration

Mr. Yi, aged 50, Head of Corporate Administration. Mr. Yi majored in fine
chemicals in Tianjin University with a Bachelor’s degree of engineering. He
has been the head of management in a large manufacturing company before
he joined Ecogreen in September 1998.

Mr. WONG Cang Yan

Head of President Office

Mr. Wong, aged 54, Head of President Office. Mr. Wong received Bachelor’s
degree of management science from National Chiao Tung University. Before
joining Ecogreen in July 2007, Mr. Wong has 27 years work experience in
enterprise management. During 2003 to 2005, he was the management
consultant of Ecogreen, helping the Group to build the daily management
system.

Mr. YAN Da Yi, David

General Manager — Marketing and Sales of Aroma Chemicals

Mr. Yan, aged 51, General Manager of the Marketing and Sales of Aroma
Chemicals, Mr. Yan holds a Bachelor’s degree of Engineering. Mr. Yan has
26 years work experience in Canada, Hong Kong and China. Before joining
the Group in May 2004, he worked for eight years in a well-known software
company in Hong Kong, for positions in marketing, sales, servicing and
administrative departments.
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Senior Management (continued)

Mr. XIAO Li Yuan

Aroma Chemicals Operations Manager

Mr. Xiao, aged 48, Director of Aroma Chemicals Operations. Before joining
the Group in February 2001, he was the deputy manager in a large chemical
enterprise. Mr. Xiao has more than 27 years experience of production
management.

Mr. TU Hong Bin

Aroma Chemicals R&D Manager

Mr. Tu, aged 44, Aroma Chemicals R&D Manager, who received a Ph.D
degree in 1995 from Beijing Institute of Technology. After the postdoctoral
research experience with Professor Alan.R.Katritzky at University of Florida
of USA (2001-2004), he joined Ecogreen in May 2005. He has more than
14 years experience in organic synthesis and methodology including 3 years
preparation and production of Heterocyclic compounds.

Mr. LAM Kwok Kin

Financial Controller and Company Secretary

Mr. Lam, aged 38, is the financial controller and company secretary of the
Company. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in accountancy and is a fellow
member of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group
in October 2003, he worked with an international accounting firm for seven
years and was the financial controller and company secretary of a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam has extensive experience in auditing,
accounting, budgeting and company secretarial works.
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The directors (“the Directors”) of EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group Limited
(“the Company”) are pleased to present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and of its subsidiaries (collectively
“the Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal activities and geographical analysis of
operations

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Group are the research and development, production and sale of fine
chemicals products from natural resources for use in aroma chemicals and
pharmaceutical products, and the trading of fine chemicals products and
natural materials.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are set
out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

Results and dividends
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 49.

An interim dividend of HK1.2 cents per share, amounting to a total of about
HK$5,826,000 (equivalent of approximately RMB4,760,000), was paid to
shareholders of the Company (“the Shareholders”) on 21 October 2011.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK3.48 cents per
share to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
on 11 July 2012. Together with the interim dividend, this will bring the total
dividend distribution for the year to HK4.68 cents (2010: HK4.68 cents) per
share, resulting in an aggregate dividend of about HK$22,648,000 (equivalent
of approximately RMB18,395,000) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Reserves
Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 51. Details of
movements in other reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 17 to the financial statements.
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Property, plant and equipment
Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Share capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves
Distributable reserves including retained earnings of the Company at 31
December 2011 amounted to RMB312,713,000 (2010: RMB308,421,000).

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed

M= - BERER
AEENE  FERRERERZ BB FHERR
BARFRARIIEET -

IR
ARBRARER 2 B FBERN P B MK T
16 °

At DR E
RAARR-_E——F+-_A=+—BEBHERER
Fl 2 DR FEE A312,713,000 T AR (==
—Z4F 1 308,421,000t AR ) -

BE HEIBEEXLAF LHES

securities
During the year, the Company made the following purchases of its own RARFEE » KR TREABMAEXTSHER A A
shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“The Stock Exchange”): ([BFr ) BERERNE Z MmO

Purchase consideration
per share
BREDNKE
Highest
BSE

Number of Aggregate
consideration
paid

X4

RERHE

shares
purchased
e
RHEE

Lowest

RIEE

REZ2——FBERRGZAH

Month of purchase in 2011

June 7~ A 814,000 2.46 2.40 1,980,700
July +A 612,000 2.60 2.54 1,576,400
September A 210,000 1.75 1.70 361,200
October +A 358,000 2.11 1.67 665.800
November +—A 638,000 2.14 1.74 1,283,000
December +—=A 174,000 1.96 1.62 295,600
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has A FPTIREEE SN - ARQ TS E A B A 714

BRAFEANRLD - HERBERIA QR Z EAK

,T/\ °

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

BRBERE
AARZBBEREN L EENELREEZR
£ MIBEESHEAY - ZSMALERE
ARARBRRLOARERRESBEHRLG -

Pre-emptive rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of




EEemE

Financial summary
A summary of the results and of the financial positions of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 120.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman & President)

Mr. Gong Xionghui

Ms. Lu Jiahua

Mr. Han Huan Guang

Mr. Lin Zhigang (appointed on 24 October 2011)
Mr. Lin Like (resigned on 30 September 2011)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Feng Tao

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

Mr. Lau Wang Yip Derrick (appointed on 10 June 2011)
Dr. Zheng Lansun (retired on 8 June 2011)

In accordance with article 108(A) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Feng Tao, Mr. Gong Xionghui and Mr. Han Huan Guang, will retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
Lin Zhigang and Mr. Lau Wang Yip, Derrick, will retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors were
appointed for an initial term of not more than one year and will be renewable

automatically for successive term of one year until terminated b_y not less than

three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the<_q’;¢1\'érl__.
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Directors’ interests in contracts
Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 35 to the financial
statements.

Save for the above, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at year-end or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 26 to 30.

Directors’ Emoluments

Details of Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the
Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in
Note 25(b) to the financial statements.

Arrangements to purchase shares or debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives of
the Company or their spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate with the exception of the Company’s
share option scheme, details of which are set out in the following section

»

under the heading “Share options”.
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Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and/or short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures
At 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors, chief
executives and their associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)), which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO; or
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which were otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company

EERTHRABRRRG  HBEROR
BEBEvERER BKE
N_ZTE——F+_A=+—8 £F THAHK
REEZHBATRARRREABEZE(EER
BHERBPEEG ([FHREEEN]) EXVED) IR
7 HEARNDKESPEES  UWELERAREIR
BEEHERIPEEHIEIGFE 2B LM SiRE
FH M EEEPIEXVEBET RSN EE Mg AR A
RIS AT (BIERIE A R EIEHI A REES - ®
LWENESEIERE 2 RS R ) SRR TR
Al EMARESBHETESFRINEETAENE
RNABI R R AT SRR T

() RALXFAEREEIGBLEERZFR

Number of shares held

iEsTE
Interests in % of the
underlying issued
shares share capital
comprised of the
in the share Company
Personal Family Corporate options AT
Name of Director interests interests interests BREET 2 Total ERITR
BEEpng B AR RiEER DEER  EEROES st AADL
Mr. Yang Yirong 400,000 - 197,264,158 - 197,664,158 40.80%
BREITE (Note a)
(Hi7t a)
Mr. Gong Xionghui - - 11,368,421 2,050,000 13,418,421 2.78%
BEIEEEL (Note b)
(HiiFb)
Ms. Lu Jiahua - - 8,526,316 1,550,000 10,076,316 2.08%
EXELL (Note ¢)
(W7t c)
Mr. Han Huan Guang 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 0.25%
BECLTE
Mr. Lin Zhigang - - - 1,800,000 1,800,000 0.37%
GRS E
Mr. Feng Tao 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 0.25%
R
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen 100,000 - - 200,000 300,000 0.06%
ERERE
Mr. Wong Yik Chung,
John 100,000 - -

"ERBELE
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Directors’ and chief executives’ interests or short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures

(continued)
Notes:
() These shares were beneficially owned by Marietta Limited, a private
company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yang Yirong.
(b) These shares were beneficially owned by Dragon Kingdom Investment
Limited, a private company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Gong
Xionghui.
() These shares were beneficially owned by Sunwill Investments Limited, a
private company beneficially wholly-owned by Ms. Lu Jiahua.
(b) Interest in share options of the Company

Share options, being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives,
to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company were granted
to Directors, chief executives, employees and certain participants
pursuant to the approved Company’s share option scheme.
Information in relation to these share options during the year ended
31 December 2011 are set out in the following section under the
heading “Share options”.

(c) Interest in registered share capital of a Company’s subsidiary
Other than the interest disclosed above, a Director also hold nominee
shares in certain subsidiaries held in trust for the Group solely for the
purpose of ensuring that the relevant subsidiary has more than one
member.

Other than as disclosed above, neither the Directors nor any chief
executives, nor any of their associates, had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares, or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporation as at 31 December 2011.

Share options

The following is a summary of the Company’s share option scheme (“the
Scheme”), which was approved and adopted pursuant to a written resolution
of the shareholders of the Company passed on 16 February 2004, disclosed
in accordance with the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the Scheme
The Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contributions to the
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Share options (continued)

3.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
The total number of shares of the Company (“the Shares”) which
may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in
issue on 21 July 2004, the date of approval of the refreshment of the
General Scheme Limit (as defined below) by the shareholders of the
Company (“the Shareholders”).

The Company may renew the 10% limit with Shareholders’ approval
provided that each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of the Shareholder’s approval (“the General
Scheme Limit”).

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted
by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time.

As at 20 April 2011, being the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of the annual report, options to subscribe for a total of 14,550,000
Shares were still outstanding under the Scheme which represents
approximately 3.0% of the Shares in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) under the Scheme or any other share option scheme
adopted by the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option

An option must be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified
by the Directors to each grantee, which period may commence from
the date of the offer for the grant of option is made, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date on which the offer
for the grant of the option is made, subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof.

BREw)

3.

REFH AT RITZROBE

RIBET 8 RA R BN 2 (T E b BB A
FHEI 2 BB A T 1 A T e 3 Ko 3%
T2 ARBBMD (B ) 88 - EHAE
HBENR-ZENFLA -+ —HBHARRAR
ROTR DT —ARETEIRFE (R A
THE)ERD BTN Z210% °

FERGIIRILER - NRFAIENE10%
ZIREE - ME—REH - HTSBEBER
HOAERZ B B BTG 2 10% ([ —ARETEIRR
&) -

RIBEEAERT I R AR R 2 E T H A
BRAE BT RHERERTTR 2 BIREE
TEMATETZRNHEE  ARRET
BB #HITR 230%

RIZB——FHA TR BETEFR
ZEREFITARE  RIBF D RITENE
[ rE RT3 BB A% 17 & #£14,650,000% - 162
TN #I3.0% °

EBRECBEHSE
BrIEMEAR N R A - BRI+ =
BAHIMA - BARIEFTBIsk AR AR 2
EMEMBRETEMETFER2HEL
BB (R IEEITE MM ARITEE ) BITE
MEIT A FEITZ RN LEE - T58B6
BEITRAZ1% °

REBBRERBRG 2R

BREANESETTNGEARAZY
RIBE B AR IRAT BRI TE - MERRIEA S
MERFRILSN - ZHREA SR LB
EE RS - EERNANFENER
BB BRFHR10F 2 R ER -




EEERL

= \J

Share options (continued)

6.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
for the grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period
required under the Scheme for the holding of an option before it can
be exercised.

The period within which payments or calls must or may be
made or loans for such purposes must be repaid and the
amount payable on application or acceptance of the option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the
date of the offer for the grant of the option and the amount payable
on acceptance of the grant of an option is HK$1.

The basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price is determined by the Directors and being not less
than the highest of:

a. the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for trade in one
or more board lots of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer for the grant;

b. the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of the offer
for the grant; and

C. the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme will end on 15 February 2014, after which no option
can be granted under the Scheme. However, options that remain
outstanding as at 15 February 2014 can be exercised until their
respective expiry dates.
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Share options (continued) B E)
The following table discloses details of share options outstanding as at 31 TxRFH MR —ZE——FE+=-A=+—RHEET2
December 2011 under the Scheme and the movements during the year. AT E 2 ERREFERENERNZ EE) -
Balance Balance
asat asat
1 January Lapsed/ 31 December
2011 Granted Exercised Cancelled 2011
Granted  Exercise Exercisable RZB-—-F during during during RZB—-F
date price period -A-H the year the year theyear tZA=1-H
Type of Grantee AEAER RILAH ik i i) FRRL TR FRRH/EH i)
HKS (000) (000) (/000) (000) (000)
Category1-Directors ~ EBH-E%
Mr. Yang Yirong BRRAE 255.2006 139 255.2006-24.5.2011 400 - (400) - -
Mr. Gong Xionghui BifELL 8.6.2004 1.37 8.6.2004-7.6.2014 3,100 - (1,050) - 2,050
Ms. Lu Jiahua EXELT 8.6.2004 1.37 8.6.2004-7.6.2014 2,600 - (1,050) - 1,580
Mr. Lin Like WIREE 26.5.2006 1.39 26.5.2006-24.5.2011 2,400 - (2,400) - -
Mr. Han Huan Guang BEREE 26.5.2006 1.39 26.5.2006-24.5.2011 2,400 - (2,400) - -
Mr. Lin Zhigang HEREE 8.6.2004 1.37 8.6.2004-7.6.2014 2,600 - (800) - 1,800
Mr. Fung Tao EEkt 25.5.2006 1.39 26.5.2006-24.5.2011 2,400 - (2,400) - -
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen R 8.6.2004 1.37 8.6.2004-7.6.2014 200 - - - 200
26.5.2006 1.39 26.5.2006-24.5.2011 400 - (400) - -
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, Jonn ~ BER %4 8.6.2004 1.37 8.6.2004-7.6.2014 200 - _ - 200
26.5.2006 1.39 26.5.2006-24.5.2011 400 - (400) - -
Dr. Zheng Lansun HEEET 8.6.2004 137 8.6.2004-7.6.2014 400 - - (400) -
26.5.2006 1.39 26.5.2006-24.5.2011 400 - - (400) -
Sub-total et 17,900 - (11,300) (800) 5800
Category 2-Employees  SRI2- %% 8.6.2004 137 8.6.2004-7.6.2014 5670 - (3.440) - 2,230
under continuous EEAHES
employment contract
26.5.2006 1.39 26.5.2006-24.5.2011 4,000 - (3,760) (240) -
Sub-total It 9,670 - (7,200) (240) 2,230
Category 3 - Other Rl 26.5.2006 1.39 26.5.2006-24.5.2011 3,200 - (3,200) - -
participants 28AL
Sub-totel N 3200 4 (3,200) = s

070
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Interest and/or short positions of shareholders
discloseable under SFO

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the persons,
other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company, which were notified to the Company
pursuant to Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

the substantial
shareholder

Beneficial Investment ABER
owner Manager FriREIgERE
BEREEA REKE HRERR
Marietta Limited 195,389,158 -
(Note a)
(Hiz# a)
Keywise Capital - 71,342,000

Management (HK) Limited

Keywise Greater China 53,022,000 -
Opportunities Master Fund

FMRLLC - 42,000,000

Platinum Investment Management - 28,234,000
Limited

UBS AG - -

Notes:

() These shares were registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Marietta
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which was directly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Yang Yirong.

(b 'I:rus_’;ee.

REEZRPERAATHREZRR
BER/ KRR
R-E——F+-_A=1+—H BEFLLARQF
TR AINZ AL RAR R M ABRA A ()
o BERREES RIERDIEXVERE2 R3S H
BEHEARRTE  HARAIRIEES LHEERDIE
336G EFE 2 B CMPTCERZ Hm LRk E I
T

REARESREEIGEAEBERZHFR

Number of shares held
Fris iR
Interest of
corporation
controlled by

% of the
issued
share capital
of the
Company
Other ¥ NG
interests Total E#T
HtrpEs st REESE
- 195,389,158 40.33%
- 71,342,000 14.72%
- 53,022,000 10.94%
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Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest and the five largest
customers were 27% and 49% respectively. The aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest and the five largest suppliers were 10%
and 31% respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company,
which to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the share capital of the
Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers noted above.

Continuing connected transactions and directors’
interests in contracts

A summary of the related parties transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2011 is contained in Note 35 to the
financial statements. The transactions in relation to the Group’s purchase
of raw materials from Chuxiong Hongbang Forestry Co., Ltd. (“Chuxiong
Hongbang”) and its associates, as described in the following paragraphs, fall
under the definition of continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules for which relevant announcements, if necessary, had been made by the
Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Chuxiong Zhongyi Forestry Trading Co. Ltd. (“Chuxiong Zhongyi”) is a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which is principally engaged in the
sale of forestry products. 70% of the equity interest in Chuxiong Zhongyi
is beneficially owned by the Company while the remaining 30% equity
interest is beneficially owned by Chuxiong Hongbang, a private company
incorporated in the Peoples’ Republic of China with limited liability and owned
by third parties independent of the Company and connected persons of the
Company.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, Chuxiong Hongbang and its associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) are connected persons of the Company.
Therefore, any transaction between the Group and Chuxiong Hongbang
and its associates will constitute a connected transaction of the Company
for the purposes of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and may be subject

to the reporting, announcement and/or independent shareholders’ approval

requirements contained in Chapter 14A of the ListingARuIes. <
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Continuing connected transactions and directors’
interests in contracts (continued)

The following table is a summary of the transaction amounts of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group with Chuxiong Hongbang for the years
ended 31 December 2011.

Connected Party
BEAL

Category
W]

Purchase of raw materials

BEREME

Chuxiong Hongbang
and its associates
TEHERL L R HES B A

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available from
independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions above in accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly at the end of the
years ended 31 December 2011 or at any time during the years; and

7 "Gi')- there were no transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
__transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate governance

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with most of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“the CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2011, save for the deviations from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
Information on the deviations and further information on the Company’s
corporate governance practices is set out in the “Corporate Governance
Report” as set out on pages 17 to 25.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within the knowledge
of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares at the date of the annual report.

Auditor

The accompanying financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment.

On behalf of the Directors
YANG YIRONG
Chairman & President

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EcoGreen Fine
Chemicals Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 46 to 119, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012
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As at 31 December 2011 R=F——F+=A=+—H

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Land use rights T Hb (R 6 9,310 9,541
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NRE 7 387,922 397,316
Intangible assets mAE 8 44,795 52,687
Investments in associates P& E 10 6,691 1,750
Deferred income tax assets BB REE 22 5,215 -
Available-for-sale financial assets At ECREE 11 200 200
454,133 461,494
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 12 151,306 115,489
Trade receivables FEUBR X 13 362,122 290,313
Prepayments and other receivables T R K L A fE KR 14 128,436 99,598
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIA 21 2,838 -
Pledged bank deposits B2 IRITTER 15 110,988 57,961
Cash and cash equivalents ReNBEEEY 15 581,724 524,409
... 1837414 F 1,087,770
Total assets BEE 1,791,547 1,549,264
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners EERBRAATEEE
of the Company
Share capital R& A 16 50,872 49,232
Share premium A (B 16 200,383 181,841
Other reserves H AR 17 64,703 65,515
Retained earnings REBEF
— Proposed final dividend — R AR HARR B 31 13,635 15,434
— Others —H1 747,097 645,488
1,076,690 957,510
3,468

 ERBlEE
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As at 31 December 2011 R=F——F+=A=+—H

LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings (EP= 18 114,696 184,820
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTE 21 973 -
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTST A E 22 14,000 10,500
129,669 195,320
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables and bills payable FER IR R BN RIE 19 241,784 167,107
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTISTHaE 5,281 5,766
Borrowings BE 18 299,297 205,661
Derivative financial instruments TEEBT A 21 5,445 668
Accruals and other payables e E R R EM BN 20 29,322 22,802
Amount due to a director = Oz 35 914 962
TP [ 582,043 B . 392,966
Totalliabilites  wme& K Mzl 588,085
Total equity and liabilities BESNERE 1,791,547 1,549,264
Net current assets REEEFE 755,371 694,804
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARE 1,209,504 1,156,298
YANG YIRONG LU JIAHUA
R E EXRE
Chairman Executive director

E
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As at 31 December 2011 R=F——F+=A=+—H

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Investments in and amounts due from

BE
FRBEE

RIS BR R 2 RE KB

31 December

31 December

subsidiaries b8 A RIRRIE 350,694 350,694
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI E S 9 204,678 153,609
Derivative financial instruments TEEmI A 21 2,838 -
Prepayments SN 14 1,426 40
. Cashandcashequivalents HREMESSEW LS Ul 1,087
154,686
Total assets HWEE 561,137 505,380
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners EERERN
of the Company ARARHEEE
Share capital &N 16 50,872 49,232
Share premium A (B 16 200,383 181,841
Other reserves Hthf#E 17 94,138 99,158
Retained earnings {REB & A
— Proposed final dividend — R R B 31 13,635 15,434
— Others —Hh 4,557 11,988
Total equity S 363,585 357,653
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities FRBAME
Borrowings B 18 144,620
Derivative financial instruments TTESmI A 21 -
144,620
Current liabilities REBAE
Borrowings N 18 B
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 21 668
Accruals and other payables BT E A R E M EN R 20 2,439
3,107
Total liabilities FoN=Fi 197,552 147,727
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 561,137 505,380
Net current assets REEEFE 110,810 151,579
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 461,504 502,273
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=T——F+-_A=+—HIFE

Revenue WA 5 1,074,688 908,251
Cost of goods sold B EE M 24 (837,734) (683,495)
Gross profit EF 236,954 224,756
Other losses — net EAbiBk — 55 23 (9,488) (424)
Selling and marketing costs SHE RIS HEEM A 24 (29,093) (23,653)
Administrative expenses ITHER 24 (47,896) (36,596)
Operating profit el 150,477 164,083
Finance income e 26 4,607 2,873
Finance costs BA RS AR AN 26 (13,206) (14,779)
Finance costs — net B TGRAR — F 58 26 (8,599) (11,9006)
_Shareofloss ofanassociate [efeEiEEE L Gy
Profit before taxation MR R R A 141,819 152,177
Taxation BB 27 (23,084) (22,108)
Profit for the year FEHFM 118,735 130,069
Profit attributable to: e MR B
Owners of the Company KARERE 119,058 130,103
Non-controlling interests FEfE 1 R A (323) (34)
118,735 130,069

Earnings per share attributable to owners FETRENEBR

of the Company during the year RABIHEE

(expressed in RMB per share) (BRRAAREFIR)

- Basic —EK 30 24.6 Centsfll 28.0 Centsflli
- Diluted — ¥ 30 24.4 Centsfll 27.3 Centsflli

The notes on pages 53 to 119 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ ZE53F 119E Mt BZE A HH KRR AT D -
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=Z

——F- A=t HIFE

Profit for the year FE@®y 5 18,736 § 130,069
Other comprehensive (losses)/income: Hi2m(Ex) e
Currency translation differences INEBITE ETE (65) 31
Cash flow hedges Bamasr

— Fair value change for the year —RNFE AR EBRE - 814

— Transfer from finance costs L DN - 1,936
Other comprehensive (losses)/income FEEMEmMUER)

forthevear ... coWsE® B ©)F 2781

Total comprehensive income FEZHEWZAE

for the year 118,670 132,850
Attributable to: BN
Owners of the Company RAREEE 118,993 132,884
Non-controlling interests FEAEHIEE S (323) (34)
Total comprehensive income FEXHREHATE

for the year 118,670 132,850
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;

E-T——E&E+_A=-+—HIEE

Attributable to owners
of the Company
FERAAARHEE
Non-
controlling
Share Share Other  Retained interests
capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total FREIM
BA  RAEE  HtEE  REEA by i
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTR ARMTn ARETR AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETx:
Balance at 1 January 2011 R=E--¥-A-H
2% 49,232 181,841 65,515 660,922 957,510 3,468 960,978
Total comprehensive income for 2011 “E—F2ENEERE - - (65 119,058 118,993 (323 118670
Issue of shares Bk 1,839 23,621 - - 25,460 - 25,460
Employee share option scheme: [EEmBRENE
- Exercise/cancellation of share options ~11f /e - - (5.219) 5219 - - -
Repurchase of shares EERA (199) (5,079) 199 - (5,079) - (5,079
Dividend relating to 2010 BBE-T-TE/RE - - - (15,434) (15,434) - (15,434)
Dividend relating to 2011 BE-3——57RE - - - (4,760) (4,760) . (4,760)
Transfer from retained earnings (Note 17) REBENER(F17) - - 4273 (4,273) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2011 R-E——%+=A=1+-A
28 50,872 200,383 64,708 760,732 1,076,690 3145 1,079,835
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-B-BE-F-HAz&H 49,232 181,841 58,852 550,558 840,483 3,502 843,985
Total comprehensive income for 2010 “E-TEZENEER - - 2,781 130,103 132,884 (3 132,850
Dividend relating to 2009 BA-TTNEFZHEE - - - (12274  (12274) - (12,274)
Dividend relating to 2010 BE-Z-SFzRE - - - (3,589) (3,589) - (3,589)
Transfer from retained earnings (Note 17) REBRER(F17) - - 3,882 (3,882) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2010 R-E-E5+-F=+-H
Zits 49,232 181,841 65,515 660,922 957,510 3,468 960,978

The notes on pages 53 to 119 are an integral part of these consolidated

- financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=ZT——

F+-A=+—AILER

Cash flows from operating activities KETBHNESRE
Cash generated from operations KEEEEANES 32 111,969 78,210
Interest paid EASHLE (24,808) (16,466)
Income tax paid EFFTSH (25,284) (20,228)
Net cash generated from operating KR IEFTSIR & R

activities 61,877 | 44389
Cash flows from investing activities RETENESHRE
Additions to property, plant and URBEMZE - BB Kk

equipment 7 (22,420) (44,336)
Additions to intangible assets EILEELN 8 (5,339) (12,610)
Addition to investment in an associate Bk & 10 B 18 0 10 (5,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities REEZSMARSFE K @2,759 8 (56,946)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHNRERE
Interest received EHFIE 4,607 2,873
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRM TSR 25,460 -
Payment of repurchase of shares Bl 9 (5,079) -
Proceeds from borrowings BEMEK 351,737 353,857
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (328,225) (316,161)
Decrease in amount due to a director JER—EFFIER D (48) (34)
Dividends paid A& B A (20,194) (15,857)
Net cash generated from RVEREFTS

. financing activites ReF® N 28,258 iy 22191

Net increase in cash and RERBESEEY

cash equivalents N EE 57,376 9,634
Cash and cash equivalents at FzHEER

beginning of the year ReEEY 524,409 514,744
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and RehReEED 2

cash equivalents b 3 e (61) 31

Cash and cash equivalents at

FRZBEER

. B2%Ew

524,409

(3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia
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1.  General information

EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group Limited (“EcoGreen” or “the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are principally engaged in the
production and trading of fine chemicals from natural resources for use in
aroma chemicals and pharmaceutical products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 March 2003 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands. The address of its registered office is Century Yard, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, George Town, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands, British West Indies.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
(RMB), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2012.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), which
include all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and applicable disclosure requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Main Board Listing Rules”). They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at
fair value.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

21 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1  Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a) New and amended standards and interpretations adopted by the
Group

(i) The following new amendments to standards are mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1 January 2011:

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Amendment
HKAS 34 (Amendment
HKFRS 3 (Amendment
HKFRS 7 (Amendment

Related party transactions

Consolidated and separate financial statements
Interim financial reporting

Business combinations

Financial instruments: Disclosures

(ii) The following new amendments to standards and interpretations are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011 but are not relevant to the Group’s operations:

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on

or after

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

Classification of rights issues 1 February 2010

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)  First time adoption of Hong 1 January 2011
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

Limited exemption from
comparative HKFRS 7
disclosures for first-time

adopters

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) 1 July 2010

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)  Severe hyperinflation and
removal of fixed dates for

first-time adopters

1 July 2011

HK (IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer loyalty programmes 1 January 2011
(Amendment)
HK(FRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a minimum 1 January 2011

: funding requirement
- Extinguishing financial
liabilities with equity -

B (Am_en_dment)
: —Int ~1duly 2010

(Amendment)
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

New standards and amendments to standards have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2011 and
have not been early adopted:

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 12 (Amendment)

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)

Presentation of financial
statements

Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets

Employee benefits

Separate financial statements

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) Associates and joint ventures

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HK(FRIC) - Int 20

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Mandatory effective date and
transition disclosures

Financial instruments

Consolidated financial
statements
Joint arrangements

Disclosures of interests in
other entities
Fair value measurements

Stripping costs in the
production phase of a
surface min

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

1 July 2012

1 January 2012

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2014

1 January 2015

1 January 2015

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the
Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. The Group also assesses existence of control where it does
not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern the
financial and operating policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control
may arise from circumstances such as enhanced minority rights or contractual
terms between shareholders, etc. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from
inter-company transactions that are recognised in assets are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest over the
net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration
is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control

are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the

owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any

consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net

assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to

non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

23 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence
is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

23 Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised
in the income statement.

24 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Executive
Directors.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
25 Foreign currency translation
@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”), which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the income statement within ‘other gains/(losses) — net.’

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign
currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security, and
other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale are included in
other comprehensive income.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
25 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has
the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

2.6.1 Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress, representing buildings on which construction
work has not been completed and machinery pending installation, is stated
at historical cost, which includes construction expenditures incurred, cost
of machinery, and other direct costs capitalised during the construction
and installation period, less accumulated impairment losses, if any. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction-in-progress until the
construction and installation work is completed. On completion, the
construction-in-progress is transferred to appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment.

Other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
ep. rate asseL as approprlate onIy when it is probable that future
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

2.6.2 Other property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment is calculated using

the straight-line method to allocate cost less their residual values over their

estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements
Office furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

30 to 40 years
5to 15 years
5to 10 years
5to 10 years
5to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’ in the
income statement.

2.7 Intangible assets

2.7.1 Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design and testing of new
or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are fulfilled:

(@) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;

(b)  management intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

(c) thereis an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the

development and to use or sell the |ntang|ble asset are avatlabief 1
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
2.7 Intangible assets (continued)
2.7.1 Research and development (continued)
® the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its

development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and
amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use on a straight-line
basis over a period of five years.

Development assets are tested for impairment annually, in accordance with
HKAS 36.

2.7.2 Patents and technical know-how

Expenditure on acquired patents and technical know-how is capitalised and
amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life of 3 to
10 years, from the date when the patents and technical know-how is available
for use.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

29 Financial assets
29.1
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivable and available-for-sale. The
lassdfccanon de ends on the purpose for which the flnanC|al assets were

Classification
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

29 Financial assets (continued)

2.9.1 Classification (continued)

(a) Financial assets at fair value though profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’,
‘pledged bank deposits’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet
(Note 2.12 and Note 2.13) .

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories.
They are included in non-current assets unless the investment mature or
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the
reporting period.

2.9.2  Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-
date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available for-sale
financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the income
statement within ‘other losses — net’, in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised in the income statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established. '
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

29 Financial assets (continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the

accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the

income statement as 'gains and losses from investment securities’. Interest

on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method

is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity

instruments are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s right

to receive payment is established.

2.9.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.9.4 Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held
— to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial

B O IR R

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
29 Financial assets (continued)
2.9.5 Assets classified as available-for-sale
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the criteria referred to in (a)
above. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the consolidated income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss
is reversed through the consolidated income statement.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether
the derivative is designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of
the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges
of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship
between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or
cash flows of hedged items.

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes
are disclosed in Note 21. Movements on the hedging reserve in shareholders’
equity are shown in Note 17. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is
classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the
hedged item is more than 12 months, and as a current asset or liability when
the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading
derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability. - i
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
(continued)

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement within ‘other losses — net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the
periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example, when the
forecast sale that is hedged takes place). The gain or loss relating to the
effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is
recognised in the income statement within ‘finance costs’. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised in the income statement within
‘other losses — net’. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example, inventory or
fixed assets), the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred
from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset.
The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in cost of goods sold in the
case of inventory, or in depreciation in the case of fixed assets.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer
meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing
in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that
was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement
within ‘other losses — net’.

2.11
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Inventories
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or share
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the company’s equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to owners of the company until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where
such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related
income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to owners of the
company.

2.15 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down

occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.16 Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an

unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. If establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
f an asset or ||ab||lty ina transactlon other than a busmess combination that
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable

that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

2.19.1 Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of the leave.

2.19.2 Share-based compensation

(@) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (share options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the share options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the share options granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

. excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, |
requirement for employees to save).
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (continued)
2.19.2 Share-based compensation (continued)
(@) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (continued)
Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service commencement
period and grant date. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

(b) Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company of share options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding
credit to equity.

2.19.3 Pension obligations
Group companies operate various defined contribution plans. The plans are
generally funded through payments to trustee-administered funds.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. The Group pays contributions to publicly or

privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee

enefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow

of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has

been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination

penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised

for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net
of discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities. Revenue is recognised as
follows:

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has delivered products
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and collectibility of
the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.22 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion the risks and rewards of ownership are

retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made

under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are

charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over

the period of the lease.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

2.24 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to banks to
support banking facilities granted to subsidiaries.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements at fair
value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Company’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher
of the initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
guarantee. These estimates are determined based on experience of similar
transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by the judgement
of management. The fee income earned is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to
guarantees is reported in the consolidated income statement within other
operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of subsidiaries
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment in the
financial statements of the Company.
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3. Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables. The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade
and other payables and derivative financial instruments.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that liquid funds are placed with
financial institutions registered with sound credit standing in Mainland China
and Hong Kong. Sales of products are made to customers with appropriate
credit history. The Group performs credit evaluations on its customers.

Trade receivables are due within two to three months from the date of billing.
As at 31 December 2011, 55% of the total trade receivables were due within
three months (2010: 75%).

As at 31 December 2011, the five largest customers accounted for
approximating 40% of the trade receivables carrying amount (2010: 47%).
The Group considers the largest customers are financially healthy with no

significant credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk represents the carrying amounts of
trade receivables in the balance sheet.

Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in Note 13.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturities at the balance
sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay.

Where the loan agreement contains a repayable on demand clause which
gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any time, the
amounts repayable are classified in the earliest time bracket in which the
lender could demand repayment.
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Total
contractual Within More than More than
undiscounted 1 year 1 year 2 years
cash flow oron butlessthan butless than
Carrying EHE S demand 2 years 5years More than
amount  TIREERM —ER —£& k2 4 5 years
The Group REE ReRELE HERNR EFEWE  AFRIE nER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%Tn ARETr ARETR ARETR  AR%Tx
At 31 December 2011 R-E--#4+-8A=+-H
Borrowings Ee 413,993 430,001 311,580 115,323 2,028 1,070
Derivative financial instruments TESBTA 6,418 6,418 5,445 973 - -
Trade payables and bills payable EREZLENEE 241,784 241,784 241,784 - - -
Accruals and other payables B ERRAMERT 25,138 25,138 25,138 - - -
At 31 December 2010 RZF-SF+ZA=1-4
Borrowings e 390,481 412,313 217,382 99,048 94,363 1,520
Derivative financial instruments TESRTE 668 668 668 - - -

Trade payables and bills payable 167,107
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

3.1
©)
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Total
contractual Within More than More than
undiscounted 1 year 1 year 2 years
cash flow oron butlessthan butless than
Carrying EHE demand 2years 5years  More than
amount  TRESRM —FRg -F% k3 5 years
The Company FEE ZHERESE BEBNR ETEWME  EFRIE LER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥®Tn ARETR AR¥Tr AR%Trt AR¥Txn
At 31 December 2011 W-E2-—-5+-A=1-H
Borrowings o 191786 200443 101,080 99,363 . .
Derivative financial instruments TESRTEA 3,716 3,716 2,743 973 - -
Accruals and other payables EERRAMERT 2,050 2,050 2,050 - - -
Financial quarantees to subsidiaries BB ERTFHBAT 115,724 121,662 74,354 31,967 15,341 -
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF+-A=1+-H
Borrowings = 144,620 154,492 4,617 76,098 13,777 -
Derivative financial instruments fTHSBIA 668 668 668 - - -
Accruals and other payables [EABRREMENT 2,439 2,439 2,439 - - -
Financial guarantees to subsidiaries BRERTHBAR 159,541 168,734 127,301 22,407 19,026 -
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

() Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates as the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets. The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its bank borrowings. Bank borrowings at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Bank borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Details of the Group’s bank
borrowings are disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and to
hedge its variable rate by fixed rate instruments, when necessary. Various
scenarios are simulated taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of
existing positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on the various
scenarios, the Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using
floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps. Such interest rate swaps have the
economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates.
Generally, the Group raises long-term borrowings at floating rates and swaps
them into fixed rates. Under the interest rate swaps, the Group agrees with
other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (primarily semi-annually), the
difference between fixed contract rates and floating-rate interest amounts
calculated by reference to the agreed notional amounts.

During 2011 and 2010, the Group’s borrowings at variable rate were
denominated in United States dollars (“USD”), RMB and Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”).

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 50 basis points as at 31
December 2011 in bank borrowing interest rates for bank loans with all other
variables held constant would decrease/increase the profit after taxation by
approximately RMB2,030,000 (2010: RMB1,851,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for non derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. Foreign exchange rate risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and transactions arising from its operations
primarily do not expose to material foreign exchange risk. Other than certain
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and derivative
financial instruments denominated in USD and HKD, details of which have
been disclosed in Note 13, Note 15, Note 18 and Note 21, respectively.
The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in RMB. Other
than approximately 39% (2010: 37%) of the sales are denominated in USD
and certain expenses in HKD, the Group mainly generates RMB from sales
in Mainland China to meet its liabilities denominated in RMB. During the
year ended 31 December 2011, the Group entered into foreign exchange
contracts to manage its foreign currency risk.

RMB has experienced certain appreciation in recent years which is the major
reason for the exchange losses arising from operating activities and exchange
gain arising from financing activities recognised by the Group for the years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010. Further depreciation or appreciation
of USD and HKD against RMB will affect the Group’s financial position and
results of operations.

A 1% strengthening/weakening RMB against USD and HKD as at the
respective balance sheet dates would increase/decrease profit after taxation
by approximately RMB1,194,000 (2010: RMB953,000) and by approximately
RMB135,000 (2010: RMB223,000), respectively, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gain/loss on translation of USD and HKD denominated bank
borrowings.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(e) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because certain
investments held by the Group are classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. As the amount of such financial assets is not material to the Group,
the exposure to price risk is considered to be insignificant.

The Group purchases turpentine as one of its major raw materials for its
manufacturing process, and is exposed to fluctuation in its market price.
The Group does not use any derivative instruments to reduce its economic
exposure to the change in price of raw materials.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the
basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt.

During 2011, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2010, was
to maintain the debt equity ratio to be in a net cash position. The net cash
amounts at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Total borrowings (Note 18) BIEE (MizE18)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15)
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the
following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Level 1 — Quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. The Group does not have this type of financial
instruments.

° Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). As at 31 December
2011, the Group had foreign currency forward contracts with fair
values RMB2,838,000 and RMB5,445,000 recognised as assets and
liabilities respectively (2010: Nil) and derivatives used for hedging of
RMB973,000 (2010: RMB668,000).

° Level 3 — Inputs for asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs). As at 31 December 2011,
the Group had available-for-sale financial assets of RMB200,000
(2010: RMB200,000) that are within this category.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If
one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data,
the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

o The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield curves.

° Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as
a result of technical innovations and competitor actions in response to market
conditions. Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

(b) Estimated impairment of intangible assets and trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of intangible assets and trade
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of intangible assets
and trade receivables. Provisions are applied to intangible assets and trade
receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be recoverable. The identification of impairment requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
intangible assets and trade receivables and provision for impairment in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

(c) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on current market conditions and
the historical experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to changes in market conditions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each balance sheet date. During
the year ended 30 December 2011, a provision for impairment of inventories
of RMB17,168,000 (2010: RMB1,110,000) is recognised in the income
statement within cost of goods sold.

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes There are many transaotlons and calculatlons for which the ultimate

g i
80 e

atements

4. EXGHETTRAE

7R B 16 150 1 A0 5 T FL A1 O 32 TR ¥4 e 3 )
BT - R RERSEREEAERZE
RFIEHA -

AEE P ARRBEREDL (G5 RHE - RS GRS
ERABRELDFRANBAERER - L TA®

Mz A RBRFEH T RV REFEEERE
BERAEEREAFHE ZEARR

(@) U% BERRB2METTAER
FAEBEEEETEDE  BFERRE 2R
AFEHRARTERS - ERMAEERBLLEER

WREZME - BERRE 2 ER T AEHBE
KEAtE - REERMREFRREFHTFEED
SRR EM LR EREE - R AFHD

REREEH - BEESEMITERMS - M
HEMBRMREZ FERERERAINEZ IR
BEEEE

(b) EEEEREVRRZMARE

AEBERBETEEREEESRZ TR EIERIE
oz 5 BT A B KR YR SRR R B B
1 o MR BARIERBEEMBRT —E AR
BRI - BEEANETLEERESARRK o B35l
REZEE R A o MTRESEARRNIRET
HE fHEZEAPEGELNREDRHETLE
E NIRRT Z IREA R A RBE R -

() FEUHRFE
FRAZFRFERAEXRET MG EERG
TRRARBERX - ZEMHFRERTHSAR
Mo MEREMEERUMEERMNBELR -
BEPORMNEE NS FHFERERSRREHN
THAEHFEAZRFENREANE - B2
ENEEE R BHEZ S -

(@  FEBE
$Elm§E%%ﬂ¢lkF@ PSRt -
SRRFTGRIBER - BEEL B AL - f—
BRBIZH - 555 % 5 AR
BBBERLTREN - AEEREYEARE
MBS - BRI BB AR R
B - WU EF BT & AR G
: SRS S BB




Notes to the Consolidated Financia

B O IR R

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(e) Research and development costs

Critical judgement by the Group’s management is applied when deciding
whether the recognition requirements for development costs have been met.
This is necessary as the economic success of any product development
is uncertain and may be subject to future technical problems at the time of
recognition. Judgements are based on the best information available at each
balance sheet date. In addition, all internal activities related to the research
and development of new products is continuously monitored by the Group’s
management.

5. Turnover and segment information

(a) Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of fine chemicals from
natural resources for use in aroma chemicals and pharmaceutical products
and the trading of natural materials and fine chemicals. Turnover for the
Group represents revenue from the sale of goods.

atements

4. EXEEHEEFTRAEE)

(e) HRRBAAR
AEEEBEERNATAENARESEEIERE
KIS VE ER BT - RRAE(TE R ESIUS
KOERES B ARANE - BReZ R AR
MBS E ML VB SNE 28 - HESE
BHAMBNREBERMERER o ttih » —4)H
MEKHAETEREANABIBIEAEEE
BERHEER o

5. HERERIIHER

(a) R
NEBTFEREFBAARAEREEBM 2R
LARS 2R REHERUAREERARE
RiEH{E B e - AEBEEETEECHEERE
7S

Sale of goods HEEMm
(net of value-added tax) (BHNkIBER) 1,074,688 908,251
(b)  Segment information b) 2ATBER

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Executive
Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. The Executive Directors
have determined the operating segments based on these reports. The
Executive Directors consider the business from product perspective.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group was organised into two
main operating segments:

1 manufacturing and selling of fine chemicals; and

trading of natural materials and fine chemicals.

HITEERIBKERKE - WITEREEHAE
BrHAERE - UFHERRERAEEIR - ITE
RBZEHREZDEENT - MITEERERA
BEEREBEE -

HE_Z——F+_A=1T—HEE  FAEEH
RMAEBEEDE :
™ HEEREERAEER X

R BEAARRE RAEAME R o

S
‘e




5.
(b)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011 are as follows:

B O IR R

C

Turnover and segment information (continued)

Segment information (continued)

5. SHEBERIBERE)
S EER )

(b)

E-F

B

——F+ A=+ —HIEFEZHHBE

Revenue Wz

Manufacturing HE 938,412 828,351

Trading g5 136,276 79,900
Total revenue Fllgs 1,074,688 908,251

Segment results DEEE

Manufacturing HE 203,672 194,185
Trading 25 4,188 6,918
Unallocated corporate expense — net ROBABIZH—F58 (57,383) (37,020)
Finance costs, net ISR - 5 (8,599) (11,906)
Income tax expense FTiSfif s (23,084) (22,108)
Share of loss of an associate FE(L B = B 1R (59) -
Profit for the year RERZ @A 118,735 130,069

(3

Other segment items included in the consolidated income statement are as

Depreciation (Note 7)

follows:

82 gl EmaRA

e (MEET)

Amortisation (Notes 6 and 8) #is (Mo 8)
Provision for impairment of intangible EREERERE
assets (Note 8) (PiI5E8)
ision for impairment of inventories FERERE
ST

S i
|

A ER C EM O EMBEBEMT -

Manufacturing

£E

2011

Trading
g5

2011
=2——%
|

31,087
11,406

6,000

1,001

120
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5. Turnover and segment information (continued) 5.
(b) Segment information (continued) (b)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2011 and capital R-ZE——F+_A=+—"HZEERBEN I
expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:

ARBEZAILFEZERRIAT

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Segment assets PHEE
Manufacturing HE 1,050,913 922,216
Trading g5 22,184 35,642
Pledged bank deposits B 2 IRITIFR 110,988 57,961
Cash and cash equivalents HeKReEED 581,724 524,409
Other corporate assets HEf R R EE 25,738 9,036
Total assets BERE 1,791,547 1,549,264

Segment liabilities pMEE
Manufacturing EE 210,856 162,327
Trading g5 38,998 15,100
Bank borrowings HRITER 405,923 370,161
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBEAE 14,000 10,500
Current income tax liabilities BIERFTS T B & 5,281 5,766
Other corporate liabilities Hih A AFIEE 36,654 24,432
Total liabilities BlERE 711,712 588,286

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Capital expenditure &N
Manufacturing HE 27,659 56,833
Trading 25 100 113
27,759 56,946

Segment assets consist primarily of land use rights, property, plant and 2 EEEEZBIELHERE - W% - BE K&
equipment, intangible assets, inventories and receivables. Segment liabilities & « M EE - 75 REWGIE ¢ "*BEF@%
comprise operating liabilities. They exclude items such as cash and cash K& BE - P ABIEREREFRHFEE
equivalents, taxation and corporate borrowings. Capital expenditure
] Comprlses additions to property, plant and equipment (Note 7) and |ntang|ble
assets (Note 8). L
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5.  Turnover and segment information (continued) 5. HEREKRIBER @)

(b)  Segment information (continued) (b) PBERE)

The Group’s sales within the two operating segments are made to customers ~ AEBM AL LD BN =(AT B[R LE o
in three main geographical areas.

Dﬂ]*

Turnover R
- Mainland China — A 657,405 571,643
— Europe — &M 175,398 173,265
- Asia (excluding Mainland China) — M (R B A BRI 109,378 85,802
- Others — A 132,507 77,541

1,074,688 908,251

Sales are allocated based on the places/countries in which customers are &R IR E MR BROHE
located.

Total assets BERE
— Mainland China — i [ (A 4 1,725,912 1,477,821
- Hong Kong — B 58,286 67,041
— Others —Hftb 7,349 4,402
1,791,547 1,549,264
Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located. BEREREEMTHOE

No geographical analysis of capital expenditure is presented as substantially ~ FHRAEE B KD EARFAZ A AP E A2
all of the Group’s capital expenditure was incurred in respect of assets  AEEYE - B WESFHERNFAT 2@ DT ©
located in Mainland China.

REMEEZEREHKED B A292,299,000 7T
—F— ﬁi 20350200075/\@1%)&7

§ b et _
B mhmgrEmERAE
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6. Land use rights - Group 6. THfERAE-FE
The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease AEER Tt FRAE 2 ESETENELSHER
payments and their net book values are analysed as follows: T IREREFESTOT ¢

In Mainland China, held on: R RHEE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10250FMHE 9,310 9,541

At 1 January —H—H
Amortisation of prepaid operating TE ST EFRIBRE
lease payments (Note 24) (MF7E24)

At 31 December +—-A=+—H
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7.  Property, plant and equipment - Group 7. YE BERRE - -£EB
Leasehold
improvements,
office furniture
Plantand and equipment Motor  Construction-
Buildings machinery HEMEES vehicles in-progress
2 HE QK BRRRME RE ERIR
At 1 January 2010 R=B-B5-F-H
Cost A 113,194 293,004 9,940 3,415 54,660 474,213
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (14,907) (67,100) 4,663) (3,352) - (90,022)
Net book amount REFE 98,287 225,904 5,277 63 54,660 384,191
Year ended 31 December HEZ-Z-%F
2010 TZAZT-HLEE
Opening net book amount EMREFE 98,287 205,904 5277 63 54,660 384,191
Additions RE - 6,396 437 - 37,503 44,336
Transfers b 11,924 7,022 - - (18,946) -
Disposals (Note 32) HE(32) - - (4) - - 4
Depreciation (Note 24) FE(M24) (3557) (26,264) (1323) 69) - (31,207)
Closing net book amount FREEE 106,654 213,058 4,387 - 73217 397,316
At 31 December 2010 RZE-%%
t=A=1-8
Cost AR 125,118 306,422 10,333 3,415 73217 518,505
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (18,464) (93,364) (6,946) (3:419) - (121,189)
Net book amount REEE 106,654 213,058 4,387 - 73217 397,316
Year ended 31 December BE-E—-F
2011 TZAZt-ALFE
Opening net book amount EMEEFE 106,654 213,058 4,387 - 73,17 397,316
Additions NE - 1,213 746 898 19,563 22,420
Transfers i - 407 - - (407) -
Depreciation (Note 24) & (Ht24) (3,649) (26,386) (1,481) (298) - (31,814)
Closing net book amount ERIEEFE 103,005 188,292 3,652 600 92,373 387,922
At 31 December 2011 R=B-EF
+ZA=+-H
Cost KR 125,118 308,042 11,076 4313 92,373 540,922
Accumulated depreciation 2R (22,113 (119,750) (7,424 (3713) - (153,000)
Net book amount REFE 103,005 188,292 3,652 600 92,373 387,922

‘The Group’s buildings and buildings under construction, totalling ~ AKREZBT REEEFTE 167,554,000 AR

67,554,000 (2010: RMB171,203,000) are in Mainland China with lease ~ # (=% —%4 : 171,203, oooﬁ/\E?ﬁﬁ) ERH

>f 50 years up to December 2047, December 2048, May 2053 and ~ BRIt Z g L0 - HERHE0E - HRIN =T
x TR e SRR ' EH:E‘I‘ A “:?E}\ﬁ‘i— B> :iﬁ_ﬁ
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7.  Property, plant and equipment - Group (continued) 7. Y%  BERZE -£8®)
Depreciation expense of RMB28,656,000 (2010: RMB28,846,000) has been  #T&E & H H+28,656,000 T A RE(ZE—F4F .
charged in ‘cost of goods sold” and RMB3,158,000 (2010: RMB2,361,000) in  28,846,0007T A R¥) L[ B & & @A | %54 -
‘administrative expenses’. if13,158,0007T A R¥E(ZZ —Z4F 1 2,361,0007T
AREEAETANITHRER]H -

Analysis of construction-in-progress is: EREIEDTET :

Construction costs of buildings R A 64,549
Cost of leasehold improvements THEMEEE - WE MK A

and plant and machinery 8,668

73,217
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8. Intangible assets — Group

inancia

atements

8. HBEEE-£E

Patents and Product

technical development
know-how costs

HFIER Em

B9 08, P A A

At 1 January 2010

Cost PR 12,161 100,079 112,240
Accumulated amortisation EG T (7,369) (52,184) (59,553)
Net book amount IR FE 4,792 47,895 52,687
Year ended BE_Z-ZTF+=A
31 December 2010 =t+—HLFE
Opening net book amount HAINRER(E 6,085 51,088 57,173
Additions INE - 12,610 12,610
Amortisation (Note 24) BH (M 5E24) (1,293) (9,803) (11,096)
Provision for impairment (Note 24) SRE B E (M 5E24) - (6,000) (6,000)
Closing net book amount HAAIREF(E 4,792 47,895 52,687
At 31 December 2010 R=ZB—ZF
+=—A=+—H
Cost AR 12,161 100,079 112,240
Accumulated amortisation RETEERRE
and impairment (7,369) (52,184) (59,553)
Net book amount IREFE 4,792 47,895 52,687
Year ended BE-Z——%+=A
31 December 2011 =+—HIFE
Opening net book amount HRINREFE 4,792 47,895 52,687
Additions NE - 5,339 5,339
Amortisation (Note 24) #eH (fisE24) (1,293) (8,439) (9,732)
Provision for impairment (Note 24) BB (T 5E24) (3,499 - (3,499)
Closing net book amount BAESIRE A - 44,795 44,795
At 31 December 2011 HNoT——F
+=A=+—H
Cost AR 12,161 105,418 117,579
Accumulated amortisation 2B RE
and impairment (12,161) (60,623) (72,784)
Net book amount IREFE - 44,795 44,795
Bk

Amortisation of RMBY,732,000 (2010; RMB11,096,000) is included in ‘cost of goods
: the consolidated income_statement

9,732,000 7T A B # 7 # 4
11,096,0007C AR ¥ ) 24 6F
AR -
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9. Investments in and amounts due from 9,

subsidiaries - Company

RHBRR 2 REREWKHER

BMIA - 2 F

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
—=E——F —E—TF
t=A=+-RH
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMIRE B AE 91,713 91,713
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note a) FEUL BB A RIFIE (FFa) 463,659 412,590
Less: oA
Amount due from subsidiaries — current portion  FEUR [ B A B FZIE
(Note b) —mEEn (FEb) (204,678) (153,609
Investments in and amounts due from RIE AR ZIE RER
subsidiaries — non-current portion MB A REIE — JERENER D 350,694 350,694
Notes: BRRE -
(@) The balance includes amounts due from subsidiaries of RMB258,981,000 (2010:  (a) AR & A B 1% /9 3018 $£258,981,0007T
RMB258,981,000) which are equity funding in nature. ARMB(ZT—T4F : 258,981,000 ARK) ©
(b) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are  (0) FEUHI B A R I EER - EmMAESH S RAREEK
repayable on demand. Eig -
The particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2011: MEBARZFEIT

Place of
establishment
BR 37 1t 2
EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Limited British Virgin Islands
RBRERES
EcoGreen Fine Chemicals British Virgin Islands
Manufacturing Limited REBEIHE
EcoGreen Fine Chemicals B.V. Netherlands
T
EcoGreen Holding B.V. Netherlands
T
EcoGreen Investments Limited Hong Kong
iRt IEERRAE BB
Sino Bright International Trading Limited Hong Kong

HEAGHZERAA

Activities

ITEXRK

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding
REER

Sale of fine chemicals
HERBER
Investment holding
AR

Investment holding

REZER

Inactive

XY

Issued and fully

paid up capital
ERTR
BERAE

US$95,000
95,0003 7T

US$1
1E

EUR18,000
18,0008 7&

EUR18,000
18,0008 7&

HK$2
2T

HK$10,000

10,000/ 7T

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Group (a)
FEBELRE
Batt(a)

100%

100%

100%

100%




9. Investments in and amounts due from 9.

subsidiaries — Company (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are: (continued)

Doingcom International Limited

FIHRER AR AR

Xiamen Doingcom Biotechnology
Co., Ltd. (b)
[EPIFRR A YIRE B R A R (0)

EEEIULBER AR
(Shanghai Fine Chemicals
Company Limited) (b)(c)

Xiamen Doingcom Chemical
Co., Ltd. (b)
EFI L RBR AR (b)

RIERIRMES HERAF0)C)
(Chuxiong Zhongyi Forestry Trading
Co. Ltd.) (b)(c)

Xiamen Doingcom Enterprise
Limited (b)
EFHRESERARID)

Xiamen Hoozyn Life Chemistry
Technology Limited (b)
EFIFMRECRERER A FIb))

Xiamen Sinoloon Import and
Export Co., Ltd. (b)
EFRBEL D ARARARARD)

Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Development

Co., Ltd. (b)
EFf R RERERBRAFID)

Zhangzhou Zhongyi Fine
Chemicals Co., Ltd. (b)
BN EEAE TER AT (b)

Xiamen Doingcom Food Co. Ltd.

EFIFHRRER AR

Place of
establishment

FR 371t B

Hong Kong
B

Mainland China
B

Mainland China
B At

Mainland China
B At

Mainland China
HEIAH

Mainland China
B At

Mainland China
B A

Mainland China
Bt

Mainland China
B At

Mainland China
HEI A

Mainland China
B At

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BFE - DR#)
HBARZEENT : ()

Activities

Trading of fine chemicals
HEERAER

Manufacturing of fine
chemicals
FEBAER

Research and development
of fine chemicals

RRELAERA R

Manufacturing and sale of
fine chemicals

FERBERMER

Sale of forestry products

HEMKER

Sale of fine chemicals
HERMLEM

Research and development
of fine chemicals
HERREERCER

Inactive

XY

Manufacturing and sale of
fine chemicals
FERFERACER

Manufacturing and sale of
fine chemicals
FEREERAER

Manufacturing and sale
of food addictives and
seasoning

FERIEERMNINE

Issued and fully

paid up capital
ERTR
HERA

HK$10,000
10,000/ 7T

RMB50,000,000
50,000,0007¢
N

US$2,000,000
2,000,000% 7T

RMB66,000,000
66,000,0007T
N

RMB10,000,000
10,000,0007T
N

RMB20,000,000
20,000,0007T
AEE

US$1,400,000
1,400,000% T

RMB7,000,000
7,000,0007T
ARE

RMB20,000,000
20,000,0007¢
N

US$6,510,442
6,510,442 7T

RMB5,000,000
5,000,0007T
AR%

REBAR 2 REREBEWHEA

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Group (a)

FEBEERE
Bott(a)

100%

100%

100%

100%

70%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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9. Investments in and amounts due from
subsidiaries — Company (continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are: (continued)

Notes:

() The shares of EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Limited are held directly by the Company.
The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

(b) Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen Doingcom”) and Xiamen Doingcom
Biotechnology Co., Ltd. are sino-foreign owned enterprises established in Xiamen,
Fujian Province, Mainland China for a term of 20 years up to October 2017 and July
2024 respectively. Shanghai Fine Chemicals Company Limited is a wholly foreign
owned enterprise established in Shanghai, Mainland China for a term of 35 years up
to March 2040. Xiamen Doingcom Enterprise Limited is a limited liability enterprise
established in Xiamen, Fujian Province, Mainland China for a term of 20 years up to
June 2024. Xiamen Hoozyn Life Chemistry Technology Limited, Xiamen Sinoloon
Import and Export Co., Ltd. and Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Development Co.,
Ltd. are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in Xiamen, Fujian Province,
Mainland China for a term of 10 years, 17 years and 20 years up to June 2012, April
2012 and July 2016, respectively. Chuxiong Zhongyi Forestry Trading Co., Ltd. is a
limited liability enterprise established in Chuxiong, Yunnan Province, Mainland China
for a term of 30 years up to March 2037. Zhangzhou Zhongyi Fine Chemicals Co.,
Ltd. is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Zhangzhou, Fujian Province,
Mainland China for a term of 50 years up to April 2057.

(c) The English names of Shanghai Fine Chemcials Co., Ltd. and Chuxiong Zhongyi
Forestry Trading Co., Ltd. are for identification purpose only.

(d) Xiamen Hoozyn Life Chemistry Technology Limited was liquidated on 9 August 2011.

10. Investments in associates — Group

9.

(o

()

(@

10.

RHBLR 2 REREWKER
BIFE - XD (#)

RAEZFBEWOT : (#&)

EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Limited f% {7 B 28 A &) &
BRAE - EaMERRRDIFEERS -

EFFHLBARARREFIFHEMRIRERA
G EEEPllﬁﬂﬂaﬁiéff‘ﬁmﬁ}zizqﬂ’yl\ééﬁ
ERR-TF DR T —LFE+ARE"
WEL AL - EEEILBER AR AINTE
L/SﬂﬁkiZ%?l § X2 h=1h
ETS = B5

el
G| ‘Maaiqéf? m
+F

- M
2 ava
:I:fyf f‘E/\)EI
Baa - BEPIRHBEL D
ERRABRATDYAEINE
BEPIMAR - EEHAFIA
CARIEZ ?* Eﬁﬂ*—?*—
TNFLAL - B aH "é’%ﬁlﬁ
BN EEERBETRIZERAF Z‘“Mﬁﬁ
FE-T_+EF= HJtL’@)Ilqﬂf“*ﬁﬁEMtI
RAR/—EDINERE  ETEAMMEREE
MEKS - RERRA+FE_TREFHAL -

LEEILRARDARREEECHERSER AR
BB BB E R o

EFMRECHRBERAGAR-_ZE——F\ANA

B e

BHERE-KH

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

At 1 January wn—A—H 1,750 1,750

Additions il 5,000 -

Share of loss of an associate EEHEEENDR (59) -

At 31 December R+—A=+—8 6,691 1,750
Particulars of the associates are as follows: B 2 FHET ¢

Percentage of
equity interest

attributable to

Place of Fully paid the Group

establishment Principal activities up capital Vi 14

FR Lt B FTEEK BERE BRERDL

Jianyang Zhongtian Forestry Chemicals Mainland China Manufacturing of forestry RMBS5,000,000 35%
Co., Ltd. PR At chemicals 5,000,0007T
BB RMEERA A EEMUEEm AR
Wuhan Geyuan Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd. (Note @) ~ Mainland China Manufacturing of RMB20,000,000
RERBRACTERAR (Fa) B A fine chemicals 20,000,0007%

FERAILZm

“Note a:  Wuhan Geyuan Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd. is'an unlisted company and has not
commenced business.

Histas
- RREERS o

AR
AR
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11. Available-for-sale financial assets — Group

11. AHHESREE &8

At 1 January R—A—BR+=ZA=+—H 200 400
Provision for impairment BB - (200)
At 31 December Nt+—A=+—8 200 200

Available-for-sale financial assets are unlisted equity securities.

12. Inventories - Group

Raw materials

AHEESREERIFLTRAFS -

12. FE-£H

110,717

Work-in-progress E8m 3,522 3,055
Finished goods EERK i 57,196 42,643
171,435 118,450
Less: Provision for impairment of inventories o EERERE (20,129) (2,961)
151,306 115,489

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in ‘cost of goods
sold” amounted to RMB705,258,000 (2010: RMB559,641,000).

The provision for impairment of inventories of RMB17,168,000 (2010:
RMB1,110,000) had been included ‘cost of goods sold’ in the consolidated
income statement.

(3

92 gkt EmaRA

BRAMIRFAAIELEREARIZFERAR
705,258,0007TT AR#E (ZF —F 4 : 559,641,000
TTARK)

FERER 17,168,000 AR (ZF—F4F :
1,110,000T AR®) B & fHil ek [ EHE MK
AIA e
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13. Trade receivables — Group

atements

13. EWERXR—£E

Trade receivables FEUBETX 366,042 293,245
Less: Provision for impairment of B FEWERFUR BB
trade receivables (3,920) (2,932)
362,122 290,313
The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values. JEUERFIREESRE R ERE -

The credit period granted by the Group to its customers is generally 60 to 90
days. For certain customers with good credit histories, an extended period up
to 180 days is allowed. The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

AEBETEEP ZEEM—RE0EIOX - HR
BERUEEELNEF KRERFHEE180EMIE
B8 - BUERRZIREDITIAT

0 to 30 days 0% 30k 84,756 80,759
31 to 60 days 31% 60K 68,254 72,602
61 to 90 days 612 90K 47,759 66,796
91 to 180 days 91%F 180K 128,302 72,890
181 to 365 days 181E365K 36,709 198
Over 365 days 365K A 262 -
366,042 293,245

Less: Provision for impairment of B FEWERFUR B R R
trade receivables (3,920) (2,932)
362,122 290,313

The credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
can be assessed by reference to the historical information about counter
party default rates. The existing counterparties do not have significant default

in the past. There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade‘

receivables, as the Group has a large number of customers

2 As of 31 ‘December 2011 trade recelvables of RMB246 117,000 (2010

R BE Eﬁﬁ?&kﬁﬁmen

BEBHSREFTECBUEN HEEERER
R AR ) YR RE 8% K B P IR IR R M E e fﬁﬁ ;
MEPIAMEANHRX o EE’\ZiK%@
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13. Trade receivables — Group (continued)

As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of RMB116,005,000 (2010:
RMB62,847,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number
of independent customers for whom there is no significant financial difficulty
and based on past experience, the overdue amounts can be recovered. The
ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

13. EWRR KB ®)
R-ZT——F+-A=+—8 EREZARE
116,005,000 T (ZE—ZF : AR#62,847,000
TOEBE BB ERE o LEFUES RS ETE
BAVBRAENBEYLRS  MBEBELER &
HAZIE AT LAYRIE o S FRURBR SRR IR D AT AR TS ¢

91 to 180 days 91E 180K 83,670 62,847
181 to 365 days 181£365K 32,335 -

116,005 62,847
As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of RMB3,920,000 (2010: R-ZT——F+_-_A=+—H  ERERXARK

RMB2,932,000) were impaired. The amount of the provision was
RMB3,920,000 as of 31 December 2011 (2010: RMB2,932,000). The
individually impaired receivables mainly relate to a few independent customers
which are in unexpectedly difficult economic situations. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

392002375(_ —ZT4& . AR#2,932,0007T)
KERE N_T—F+-_A=+—8 %4
@a&iz\%)\ﬁﬁ@s 920,000 (ZE—FT4F : AR
2,932,0007T) ° ERIRERNEBUGREZRE D&

BERERAIEERNEFABLES - ILFE
WoRm BRER AN

91 to 180 days 91E180K - 734
181 to 365 days 181E365K 3,658 2,198
Over 365 days 365 KA 262 -
3,920 2,932
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in A& EMEKARREVIREEL N B BBAL

the following currencies:

ki

94 R T REERA
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13. Trade receivables — Group (continued) 13. EWERR KB (®)

=

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:  JEUWERFURBEREENE ST :

At 1 January —H—H 2,932 2,232
Provision for impairment of trade receivable JEU R FUR B RS 988 1,192
Receivables written off during the year FRF) AU B A FE UL

as uncollectible R SR 8 - (492)
At 31 December +=-—A=+—H 3,920 2,932

The creation and release of provisions for impaired receivables have been ¥ E R EERFTIEEN R I NEL D BIEESH
included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income statement. W2k A 1THREBR IR - EEEES TR G
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off, when — Bi%8— RS EFEEIE AN O ZBHNR S EFMISY -
there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

14. Prepayments and other receivables - Group and 14. AR REMEKRZR - S£ER
Company NS

Group Company

Prepayment for purchases of BEREERN K

raw materials

115,951 92,512

Input value-added tax recoverable A Bl HE TR I E 8,461 5,448 -
Others Hib 4,024 1,638 40
128,436 99,598 40

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their fair values and B EMGIREEHR A AR EHEEEEEUAR
are mainly denominated in RMB. WoE - : 5
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15. Pledged bank deposits, cash and cash 15 BE#EZETER  BekES

equivalents - Group and Company ZEBY-—&EBER AT
Group Company
£H AT

Pledged bank deposits B 2 RITIFR 57,961
Cash and cash equivalents — cash ReERBESEED

at bank and on hand —RITREFRE

110,988

581,724 524,409

1,037

692,712 582,370

1,037

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents REEIFZRTFEH -  BL LR SEYHIER

are denominated in the following currencies: BEEEENSENOT ¢
Group Company
&85 AT

Renminbi 679,967 568,450

Hong Kong dollar BIT 3,322 2,309 701
US dollar X7 8,193 9,567 336
Euro 7 1,210 2,024 -
Others HAp 20 20 -

692,712 582,370 1,037

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has pledged bank depositsand R-ZT——F+-_A=+—H AEELEEK
cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB679,967,000 (2010:  #ZiR{TEFER « RE MR ZEYWHI679,967,000
RMB568,450,000) denominated in RMB, which is not a freely convertible ~ JTTARKE(ZZT—Z4F : 568,450,0007C AFRHE )5
currency in the international market and its exchange rate is determined by A AREE - B ATREREBRE TS EmEHRE

the People’s Bank of China. B HEXHBPBEARRITEE ©

Lleddin il

96 T EERA

R=ZF——F+=_A=+—H "110,988,000;TA
RE(=_Z—ZTF : 57,961,000t A R#) 2 iB1T
GFRE TURIREAAEBN B AR RETERES
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16. Share capital, premium and share options -
Group and Company
(a) Share capital — Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised:

(thousands) RMB’000
(F=t) ARBT T
At 1 January 2010, RZZE—-LTF—H—H"
31 December 2010 —E-TE+-F=+—HFK
and 31 December 2011 —E——%F+-_A=+—H 2,000,000 212,000

16. BAX 2ELRERE -£EK
AT
(@ BREASREMEOUETZILZER

Nominal value
of ordinary
shares

EEREE

Number of

shares

RAZBE

Number of Nominal
fully paid value of
shares ordinary Share
[EF & shares Premium
Issued: BHEE TEREE BB E
(thousands) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(F=H) AR¥T T AR¥T T ARBT T
At 1 January 2010 and RZZE—-ZTF—H—H-

31 December 2010 —E-EF+-A=+—H 465,210 49,232 181,841 231,073
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE—F—HF—H 465,210 49,232 181,841 231,073
Issue of shares (Note i) BT (B 3ED) 21,700 1,839 23,621 25,460
Repurchase of shares (Note i) [EIBEIZ 5 (Pt 3Tii) (2,414) (199) (5,079) (5,278)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—%F

+—-A=+—H 484,496 50,872 200,383 251,255
Notes: BRRE -

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company issued 21,700,000 shares
at a weighted average price of HK$1.38 each.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company repurchased 2,414,000

shares at a weighted average price of HK$2.20 each.

(b) Share options

Share options are granted to directors and to selected employees. The
exercise price of the granted options is equal to the market price of the shares
on the date of the grant or the average closing prices of the shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant, whichever
is higher. The share options would vest progressively from the grant date to
the third year after the grant (the vesting period) provided that the relevant
employee remained employed by the Group. Share options are exercisable
up to 10 years after the grant date. The Group has no legal or construc‘uve
obligation to repurchase or settle the share options in cash. :

RZT——F+_A=+—HALFERN  KXQGA
hniEF S E AR .38 7L 8 17£21,700,0000% ©

RZE——F+_A=+—ALFERN ' KAQGA
DA ESR%2.2078 T Bl B ££2,414,0000% -

(i

(b) AR
BEMEEM B T ER BB - FTIR THEE
RIERNTEERSENET B HROHESRBRER
HEHBAERS ARMDZFHRHEE  UEs
ERE - CEEREERNERESE=FHRG
THR) B T - B EREELN E—EAER
HEE - BREAIREE B BRI 10F R TE ¢
$El1ﬁ/£mﬂdﬁm1ﬁ% ¢
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16. Share capital, premium and share options -
Group and Company (continued)

(b) Share options (continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related

weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

16. BAX - 2ELRERE -£BK
YNCIIE),

(b) EEREE)

R ITIE B AR R B B R E BRI AT (E

HEHMT :

2011 2010
—g——%F —F-TF

Average Average

exercise exercise

price price
in HK$ Options in HK$ Options

per share per share
option  (thousands) option (thousands)
FIITREE iR AE FI1TEE it g
BRET (F3t) BRET (F&t)
At 1 January “n—A—H 1.38 30,770 1.38 30,770
Exercised 2176 1.38 (21,700) - -
Cancelled [mEaic 1.37 (400) - -
Lapsed B 1.39 (640) - -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 1.37 8,030 1.38 30,770

All outstanding share options as at 31 December 2011 were exercisable (2010:
all 30,770,000 options were exercisable). Share options exercised in 2011
resulted in 21,700,000 shares being issued by the Company at a weighted
average price of HK$1.38 each. The related weighted average share price of
the Company at the time of exercise of the share options was HK$2.85 per
share.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry
dates and exercise prices:

R_ZE——F+_A=+—8  FIBER{TENE
&t ] TITE(ZE—Z4F : FTA30,770,0004Y
BREDI FITE) - £ ——F - 1TEBERE
BY AR BRI EERTR.38F T
7721,700,0008% 7  T{EBIRER B AR R EH
IR (E AT NR2 858K -

FEFRIEFARTTENBBRENZ A MITEEDT

Share options

Exercise price Bt
HK dollar per share 2011
Expiry date BRBTITEE —E——F

" May 2011
June 2014

(thousands)
(F6)

(thousands)
(F13)

16,000
14,770
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17. Other reserves - Group and Company

17. HibFE - KERATF

(a) Group (a) £E
Capital
Statutory  redemption Share
Capital  Contributed reserves reserve options
reserve surplus Note i Note (iv) equity Currency
Note (i Note (i) EE RARE reserve Hedging  translation
HAGE Bz N -k 4] e reserve reserve
i (i) BE (i) HitaE (i HHZE (iv) R Hnfit EdffE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR  ARMTR  ARETR ARBTR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn
At January 2010 H-2-25-7-8 6% 950 420 Ihl 779% 2750 O 5B
Transfer from retaind eamings REEHER . . 3882 . . . . 3882
Cash flow hedges REnEHn
- Fair value gains during the year -FEMEYE - - - - - 2,750 - 2,750
Currency tranglation differences ERES - - - - - - 3 31
Balance at 31 December R=%-8Ft12R
2010 Zt-ReiH 685 9,500 47,084 421 7,796 - 29 66,515
At1 January 2011 R-E--%-5-8 685 9,500 47,084 421 7,796 - 29 66,515
Transfer from retained eamings REBEEE - - 4073 - - - - 4,013
Employees share option scheme: [EE RS
- Exercise/Cancellaion of share options 1748/ st R - - - - (5219) - - (5219)
Repurchase of shares gk - - - 199 - - - 199
Currency translation differences EiEE - - - - - - (63) (63)
Balance at 31 December R-B--F+ZR
2011 =t-BzE&8 685 9,500 51,357 620 2,517 - 30) 64,703
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17. Other reserves — Group and Company (continued) 17. Hiu@E -SERQAF(#2)
(b)  Company (b) =&F
Capital
redemption Share
Capital reserve options
reserve Note (iv) equity
Note (i) BAEE reserve Hedging
BAGE e BRE reserve Total
BIEE (i) HIZE (iv) BAGRE B st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR IN:S ARBTR
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-E-ZF-F-Az&H 90,941 421 7,796 (2,750) 96,408
Cash flow hedges Remet
— Fair value gains during the year - FEAAENRE - - - 2,750 2,750
Balance at 31 December 2010 R=ZB-BF5+=-A=+—-H
pd 90,941 421 7,796 - 99,158
Balance at 1 January 2011 RZB-—-F-A-HZ&R 90,941 421 7,796 - 99,158
Employee share options scheme EEREREE
- Exercise/cancellation of share options ~ —{E B 1T{F,/ 1 $Rs fi iz - - (6,219) - (6,219)
Repurchase of shares EIgERR - 199 - - 199
Balance at 31 December 2011 W-B——%5+-B=+-AH
ko33 90,941 620 2,577 - 94,138

Notes: BisE

i) Capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value (i) AEEERFHERE_STNF_A+<BEME
of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the share exchange on 16 BT R BT B8 R B AR MO T (B B 3B AR A B BT LASRER
February 2004 over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in it 2 RAEERE5E -
exchange therefor.

Capital reserve of the Company represents the difference between the costs of ARREAHBERIE_ZTOF_ A+ R84
investments in subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the share exchange on 16 February Pk B B8 A RO A PR AN 3B AR A B BT AR ER
2004 over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange % E 2 AN ERERE -

therefor.

(ii) Contributed surplus represents the capital contribution from an executive director (i) BEHRBIEANG —BRTESRAEEZEREM
and an indirect substantial shareholder of the Company, as part of a group SEBMAEL 2 HERE -
reorganisation exercise.

(iii According to the articles of association of the relevant subsidiaries established in (i) RER R B AR 2 BRI E AR 2 B E 24
Mainland China and the Mainland China rules and regulations, Mainland China BIl N A8 B B AR BY K AR 51 - AR B kb B B A 7
subsidiaries are required to transfer not less than 10% of their net profit as stated BEATIERIET R A& ERRE 2 F /2 53R
in their annual financial statements prepared under Mainland China accounting KPP FERTDN0% - BAKEAES 77
regulations to statutory reserves before the corresponding Mainland China RS o AT ATESEDE BN E QA M
subsidiaries can distribute any dividend. Such a transfer is not required when the BAR50%Fs - RIB/BREERE - XEAESENA
amount of statutory reserves reaches 50% of the corresponding subsidiaries’ RIESEE BB A REE - BmABEME AR EE
registered capital. The statutory reserves shall only be used to make up losses of the HESIEMBEB AR - ZEESEHENER
corresponding subsidiaries, to expand the corresponding subsidiaries’ production AIZBRERERRASBIBRERIE - BIBRAME
operations, or to increase the capital of the corresponding subsidiaries. Upon DFRIAAE AEEEAEMER - ¥ BRBAR
approval by resolutions of the corresponding subsidiaries’ shareholders in general B EBRAREEBLLPIETAR - RZTTNEF
meetings, the corresponding subsidiaries may convert their statutory reserves into +=ZA=+—8 " EFtHtEERARREMT
registered capital and issue bonus capital to existing owners in proportion to their REXZEBRAGIMNEE A BB EIFMER
existing ownership structure. As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the amount of 50% ABE_T—TF+_A=+—HULEH
statutory reserves of Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co., Ltd. and Xiamen Sinotek Ve -

Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. had reached 50% of its registered capital and
accordingly, no further transfer to its statutory reserves has been made.
(iv) The capital redemption reserve relates to the cancellation of the Company’s own (i) RAEE R ERFHEARAZRHER
R shares.
(V) BERESMESADEUERTA)  RNARAEDIR

o The Company’s other reserves totalled RMB294,521,000 (2010: RMB280,999,000)

ny Law (@visedlof the Cayman Islands subject to certain

18 4 7294,521,000 t AR (ZZFE—TF
280,999,0007C ARE ) ©
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18. Borrowings - Group and Company 18. BE-—KEKAT
Group Company
58 NS

Non-current FERE

Government loans BIFER 2,750 3,200 -

Bank borrowings RITEE 111,946 181,620 144,620
114,696 184,820 144,620

Current BIHEAR B

Government loans B E R 17,120 -

Bank borrowings RITIEE 293,977 188,541 -
299,297 205,661 -

Total borrowings BEHE 413,993 390,481 191,786 144,620

Terms and maturity of the government loans are as follows: B EREREERRANT

Repayable in 2011, non-interest bearing AR ——FEE B8 10,000
Repayable in 2012 to 2018, interest-bearingat AR -ZT——FF —F— \FH

2.6% per annum Bi8 - N2 BEFFEGTE 3,650
Repayable on demand, interest-bearing at 7.6% ENER{EE - LA7.6/EEF|X:T 8

per annum 6,000
Repayable on demand, non-interest bearing ENER(EE - B8 670

20,320
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18. Borrowings - Group and Company (continued) 18. BE-—&K£EKQE(#E)
The maturity of borrowings is as follows: BEZERPROT
Group Company
58 AF

Amounts repayable within a period of: B A T EAfEIEE

LA

- not exceeding one year — B —F 209,297 205,661 -

— more than one year but not ——FUE B
exceeding two years BB F 112,396 92,760 72,310

— more than two years but not —MFENRE 1B
exceeding five years BB RF 1,350 90,660 72,310
- more than five years —RFUE 950 1,400 -
413,993 390,481 144,620

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows: REEE 2 EBREFENAT :

Government loans BITER 4.8% 2.7%
Bank borrowings HRITIEHE 4.6% 4.2%
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values. ERMERAmEREE QAR EREL -

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following ~ ERAIBRESREA TSI EIE RBBAL -
currencies:

Group Company
£9 |
2011 2011
—2——F :
|

180,067
14,792
219,134

192,029
18,702
179,750

191,786

144,620

020 g T EmERA
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18. Borrowings — Group and Company (continued)
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

18. BE-—&K£EKQE(#)
AEEE THIRENERRE

Floating rate YN

— expiring within one year ——FNEH 319,702 271,456

— expiring beyond one year ——F A 5 H 43,327 58,684
363,029 330,140

Bank borrowings of RMB115,724,000 (2010: RMB159,541,000) are  $R1TE 58 115,724,000 7L A R# (= §¢

supported by the corporate guarantees provided by the Company, bank 159 541,000 T A R ¥ ) AR A1 % X F

borrowings of RMB264,786,000 (2010: RMB210,620,000) are secured by 17 & 5% 264,786,000 T A R ¥ (Z T —F ¢

cross guarantees between subsidiaries.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate changes and the
contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet dates are as follows:

6 months or less 6 ASAT 372,793
6-12 months 6— 1218 A 38,450
1-5 years 1—5%F 1,800
Over 5 years 5F LA 950

210,620,00073/\E¢1€<)LAW% A ﬂm%ﬁ‘;ﬁ% o

REER  AEBENERENRESHRANET
TEBHBFAENRRIT

366,831
20,450
1,800
1,400

413,993

390,481 191,786 144,620
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19. Trade payables and bills payable — Group

19. EBNUERRREMRE 58

Trade payables JETBRFR 18,077 30,330
Bills payable EANESE 223,707 126,777
241,784 157,107

The aging analysis of trade payables and bills payable based on invoice date
were as follows:

F’iﬁﬁé AN BN RBRBEER A 2R D40

0to 30 days 030K
31 to 60 days 31E60K 33,212
61 to 90 days 61290k 25,362
91 to 180 days 91E180K 62,645
181 to 365 days 1812365k 10
Over 365 days EBiA365K 304
157,107
The carrying amounts of trade payables and bills payable approximate their — fE{tERE &}féﬁmﬁé EEEEEALEMRSE A
fair values and are mainly denominated in RMB. TEUAEKSE

Bills payable are secured by pledged bank deposits of the Company.

20. Accruals and other payables - Group and
Company

FEMEER AR B E

Payable for construction costs and

property, plant and equipment #*/7)% BB &
RIEEN 2
Output value-added tax payable R S IEIE(E
Accruals for FERT
~ Administrative, selling and —1TIR - HERTS
HEER

ENRIBEARR B Z RITFFIEER -

20. EGERARAEMEANR - SER
N
Group Company
58 AFE]

2011

2,439

104

R T EEARA
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21.
Company

2011
—E--&
Liabilities

=]

Assets

gE

RMB'000

Derivative financial instruments - Group and 21.

RMB'000

TEERMTIA - KERAH

Company
A7
2011
—2--%
Liabilities Assets Liabilities

& i

Assets

gE

Liabilties

af af

RMB'000

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREFT  ARETR | ARETR ARETT  ARETR
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges FEEA-RETEEH - 668
Forward foreign exchange contracts EHNESR
- held-for-trading -RRABHMRE - -
Total @ - 668
Less non-current portion: EEEIENE
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges FREE-REHEES - -
Current portion ik ol - 668

Derivatives held for trading purpose are classified as a current asset or
liabilities. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-
current asset or liability if the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more
than 12 months and, as a current asset or liability, if the maturity of the
hedged item is less than 12 months.

(a) Forward foreign exchange contracts
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange
contracts at 31 December 2011 were RMB579,683,000 (2010: nil).

(b) Interest rate swaps
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts
at 31 December 2011 were RMB195,328,000 (2010: RMB50,407,000).

At 31 December 2011, the fixed interest rate is 3.84% (2010: 4.65%), and the
main floating rate is LIBOR.

RHUNTETADERRDEEREE - IHE
HEANIEABEE12EA - MEZBRAAEE
DEBERBEEXRE  MFEHHEE NEIH

BAR12MEAR  AEZBAABEIERARDE
EXAE -
(@ EHIESE

R-T——H+-A=+—H NAEENEHY
HNE S R AR TE A & BH & 579,683,000 T A R
(ZZE—Z=F : |) -

(b) FIEE#H

MRZTB——F+-A=+—H  NALENFI=X
HRARMR TS5 A195,328,0007t ARKE (=
T—FF 1 50,407,000;T AREE) »

P el = Ry = e T = e e B R RS
384E(ZE—B4E : 4658) » MEEHZET
RAHIERITRIFERS ©
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22, Deferred income tax - Group 22, RIEFEFHE-£E

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally EHAFERIRITE NS S EFIEE EE S BARE
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities & &K% - BBRTEMEBHEENB B RFA—
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The — FH75#RE - BRI B EEFAS T E EMN B E B HIK
following balances, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the 8 - Z E &R AR — 5 @ N EAEILRE
consolidated balance sheet: MEERBEBEMNSTAT

Deferred income tax assets to be recovered HBiB121E A& Uk El
after more than 12 months RIREFTISTHE E 2,614 -
Deferred tax asset 1218 B Uk B AR E FTiSHt
to be recovered within 12 months BE 2,601 -
5,215 -
Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled BB 121E B 1% Uk o] /Y IR IE
after more than 12 months FriStiB & (14,000) (10,500)

The gross movements on the deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as ~ IEEFTSFLERAEE BT -
follows:

At beginning of year F1) (10,500) (10,500)
Credited to the consolidated income statement & iz R A E (HiFE27)
(Note 27) 1,715 -

At end of year (8,785)

W e
(106 miepmmi T s mARA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT HmRME

22. Deferred income tax -
Deferred income tax assets

Group (continued)

22, EEFISHIE-K£EB®)
BEFFEBEE - £8

Provision for
impairment of

inventories Tax loss
FERERE GIE: &)=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR%T
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 and —E-FTF—H—H
1 January 2011 +—A=+—HxK
—T——%F—H—H - - -
Credited to the consolidated income statement EA&FFHRERANERL
(Note 27) (FF&E27) 2,601 2,614 5,215
At 31 December +=-—A=+—H 2,601 2,614 5,215
At 31 December 2011, the Group has unused tax losses of RMB34,571,000 fI—HfE?DEﬁEEEw BLEFBHEENEBAR

(2010: RMB34,802,000) available for offsetting against future profits, and a
deferred income tax asset of RMB2,614,000 (2010: Nil) has been recognised
in respect of such losses. No deferred income tax asset has been recognised
in respect to a total of RMB4,583,000 (2010: RMB7,095,000) due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.

At 31 December 2011, deferred income tax liabilities of RMB76,850,000
(2010: RMB53,953,000) has not been recognised for the withholding
tax and other taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of certain subsidiaries as the Company controls the dividend policies of
these subsidiaries and it is not probable that these subsidiaries would
distribute earnings in the foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings totalled
RMB456,519,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010: RMB371,758,000).

Deferred income tax liabilities

At 1 January =
Debited to the consolidated EEMRERAER
income statement (Note 27) (FffzF27)

#34,571,0007C (=2 —FF : ARK%34,802,000
JT)  RREBA FEE’J?RJWEH%%%J/W:%WE
REERENZMER  CERERLEFREHREE
BARE2614,000C(ZE—ZF : £) - ]NEEH
0 4B E A) A4 8 DA 8H R R B ER A R 6 4,583,0007T
(ZZ2—ZF : AR¥7,095,0007T) °

[l 52 [ Bt 4045 I S B B A B YR Bk IS R &MY
BAREN ROERELTESHAERFBEELD
L AEBVARETFRAGNRERFBAET
YANBRASHRME M IERRELTTER
BEARET6,850,000C(ZF—FF : ARK
53,953,0007T) ° I FHARERK S BIERIAME
B eoRZE——F+-_A=+—HBHHRERRKE

AHARE456,519,000L(—T—TF : ARK
371,758,0007T) °
EEFEHAE &8
Withholding tax
RINFrBH
2011 2010
T——F —E—EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT

10,500 10,500

3,500

- At-31 December +=H=+=H
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23. Other losses - net

HMg R — 35

Realised losses on interest rate swaps-net FIREM 2 SRBKR —F5 (310) (668)
Income on government grants BN 2 W a 191 386
Net exchange (losses)/gains (Note 28) SFEN (1B2K) Wk (F3E28) (5,908) 197
Net fair value loss on foreign exchange contracts & HISNE A R A 7 (BEE R (2,598) -
Others Hh (863) (339)

(9,488) (424)
24. Expenses by nature EHEE s 2BX

Amortisation of prepaid operating
lease payments (Note 6)
Depreciation (Note 7)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8)
Provision for impairment of
intangible assets (Note 8)
Provision for impairment of
inventories (Note 12)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(Note 13)
Employee benefit expense (Note 25)

Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work-in-progress

Raw materials and consumables used

Transportation

Operating lease payments

Auditor’s remuneration

Other expenses

R LTS TR
(Mi5E6)

e (K 7)

E A (fREs)

BB ERERE (MS)

FERERE(HE12)

JEUBR SR (B B
(MI7%13)

B BREFIFAZ (MEE25)

EX RS

B AR K EFER

B

LEREMS

ZEEME S

Hth B A

988
36,954

15,019
690,239
14,669
2,968
1,732
89,710

310
31,207
11,096

6,000

1,110

1,192
28,900

22,261
537,380
13,069
4,033
1,647
85,539

108 e T EmERA

743,744
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25. Employee benefit expense

atements

EEERRAX

25.

TE  #Ha - HibRah

Wages, salaries, other allowances

and benefits in kind REYF = 33,825 26,926

Pension costs — defined contribution RIRERRAR - FREEK
plans (Note a) BE AR 3,129 1,974
36,954 28,900

(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plan for its employees in
Mainland China, which is a defined contribution plan. The Group and its
employees contribute approximately 6% to 14% and 0% to 4%, respectively,
of the employees’ salary as specified by the local government, and the
Group has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plan is responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group and its Hong Kong employees makes monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month.

During the year, the aggregate amounts of the Group’s contributions to the
aforementioned retirement schemes were approximately RMB3,129,000
(2010: RMB1,974,000). As at 31 December 2010, the Group was not entitled
to any forfeited contributions to reduce the Group’s future contributions.

(@) BRAERAE - EEMANEE
REFEAER  ARESETEAMEER
BIRRA] 2 ERHFURKEHEK - ARERE
BEDRIZBTBNMEEZEEHFEHONE
14% R 0% 4% K - BIELFEHEFI - KE
EHABARERINEREIERREN &
- BRABAIZRASFEAERN TRINER
Z—HRIREMEE -

AEECLHESSRELEHABUEIAEE
2 EEME KBRS RSB ([RESET
2] - RIEBESHE AEERERBEEEA
T RIERASIERTESIENEE 2 BEKRAS%
EERFEHER  MASEREETARKLER
21,00087T °

RNEE - AEEGH R KES 8 2 R RE
#1/3,129,0007t AR (ZZE—F 4 : 1,974,000
TARE) RZZT—TF+-A=+—H X%
B BRI D E B 1& 5K o
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25.

(b) Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December 2011 is
set out below:

Employee benefit expense (continued)

25. EERANEX#E)
(b) EEBe
BE-—T——F+-A=+—-AIt&EE &ES
ZEEEFIMT -

Salaries,
other Retirement
allowances benefit-
and benefits defined
in kind contribution
e plans
Name of Director Hfth)E Rk BAREFR—
BEEpE REWEA ERRERGTE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®T T ARBTT
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Yang Yirong BRREE - 1,788 11 1,799
Mr. Gong Xionghui BT E - 678 9 687
Ms. Lu Jiahua BERELL - 936 9 945
Mr. Han Huan Guang BESEE - 1,001 10 1,101
Mr. Lin Zhigang (Note i) PRI 52 & (Ht3E) - 87 2 89
Mr. Lin Like (Note ii PR 72 5 A (B 3 - 566 7 573
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Feng Tao HERE - - - -
Independent non-executive BIYFHITES
directors
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ERE2EE 180 11 - 191
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John HEBLE 180 1 - 191
Mr. Lau Wang Yip, Derrick (Note iii 2172 5 50 A (M) 99 7 - 106
Mr. Zheng Lansun (Note iv) BRI A (T7EV) - - - -
459 5,175 48 5,682

Notes:
(i) Appointed on 24 October 2011
(ii) Resigned on 30 September 2011

(iii) Appointed on 10 June 2011

Retired on 8 June 2011

fiaE

[0} RZZE——F+A-TMNAEERT

() REF-—FAAStABRE

(iif R=Z——F A TAERE

T —— 5/ R
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25. Employee benefit expense (continued) 25, EEEFNEZ®)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (b) EEMS(E)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December 2010is EHE_-_ZET—ZTFE+_A=+—HIEE  &8EF
ZMeEIOT

set out below:

SEEIE
other Retirement
allowances benefit-
and benefits defined
in kind contribution
b plans
Name of Director f RINEF—
e TE R RETE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yang Yirong BREEE - 1,786 10 1,796
Mr. Gong Xionghui RIS E - 708 717
Ms. Lu Jiahua BERELL - 904 913
Mr. Lin Like MhR%E - 896 904
Mr. Han Huan Guang BECLESE - 1,148 10 1,158
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Feng Tao HEEE - - - -
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ERERE 189 15 - 204
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John mEBEAE 189 15 - 204
Mr. Zheng Lansun BRBLE - - - -
378 5,472 46 5,896

Note:

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
Nil).

GEX

BEZ——F+_A=+—HULFE ITEEEREEIM

e(—F—FF &) -
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25. Employee benefit expense (continued) 25. EEEANEXZ®)

(c) Five highest paid individuals (c) EEBREFAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the AEEAREEZFSIHMORAMATEENA(ZE
year include four (2010: five) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the ~ —Z4F : Ff7)EE - M IRIHBE L XHHRE 5
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining one (2010: MRt - RFEEZMREH (I (T —TF :

nil) individual during the year are as follows: FE)ANTHEH T -

Basic salaries, other allowances EAXFHS - HhEph
and benefits in kind REYM =S _

Retirement benefit — defined contribution plans  R{KIEF| — E 2B 2 ETE|

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, no emoluments were #HZ - ZT——F K " T—TF+_-_A=+—HIt
paid to the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to /& » WEAAA T EERZOALRSHFATE

join or as compensation for loss of office. EAME - 1EAWSIEINE 2 RE S ER B
ZIE -
26. Finance income and costs 26. WS R

Interest expense on: FEBMA
- Bank borrowings wholly repayable —BRRAFRZHEEY
within five years RITIEE (28,248) (18,594)
— Government loans wholly repayable —AREFAZEEEZ
within five years BT ER (93) (399)
Net foreign exchange gains on BhE E B A FIE N s (P FE28)
financing activities (Note 28) 11,602 1,687
(16,739) (17,306)
Less: amount capitalised on qualifying assets B ABEREEENMHE 3,533 2,527
Finance costs N (132090 8 (14,779)
Finance income sl e
— Interest income on short-term — R HRITERNF B
2,873

N2 gk emaR
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Taxation

atements

27.

BiIE

Current tax IBAHIE
- Mainland China enterprise income tax — R R D TSR 24,799 22,108
Deferred tax (Note 22) EIEREIE (B7E22) (1,715) -
23,084 22,108
Notes: FI3E -
(a) Hong Kong profits tax (a) EBFEH

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had no assessable profit
arising in or derived from Hong Kong.

Mainland China enterprise income tax

The subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to Mainland China
enterprise income tax at a rate of 24% (2010: 22%). Two of the PRC subsidiaries,
Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co. Ltd. and Xiamen Doing Biotechnology Co. Ltd. have
obtained approval from Mainland China Tax Bureau to be exempted from enterprise
income tax for two years starting from the first year of profitable operations, followed
by a 50% reduction in enterprise income tax for the following three years. Xiamen
Doingcom Chemical Co. Ltd. and Xiamen Doing Biotechnology Co. Ltd. has
commenced to enjoy its tax holiday from year 2007 and 2008 respectively.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National People’s
Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China
(“the New Tax Law”) which took effect on 1 January 2008. From 1 January 2008,
the income tax rate for the operating subsidiaries mentioned above will be gradually
changed to the standard rate of 25% over a five-year transition period. According
to the Circular 39 passed by the State Council on 26 December 2007, the tax
exemption and reduction will be terminated latest by 2012.

Overseas income taxes

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and,
accordingly, is exempted from Cayman lIslands income tax. The Company’s
subsidiaries established in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated under the
International Business Companies Acts of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly,
are exempted from British Virgin Islands income tax.

Mainland China value-added tax

The subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to Mainland China value-
added tax (“VAT”) at 17% (2010: 17%) of revenue from sale of goods in Mainland
China and entitled to a VAT export refund at 9% to 13% (2010: 9% to 13%) from
sale of goods outside Mainland China. Input VAT paid on purchases can be used to
offset output VAT levied on sales to determine the net VAT recoverable/payable.

Withholding tax
Pursuant to the New Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland

China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings‘

after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

treaty between China and the jurisdiction of the foreign |nvestors W1thholdln taxes"; 2

are payable on dividends distributed/to be distributed by those subsidiaries and an -

Iashed in Malnland China in respect of eammgs generated from 1

AR SR B3 AR BB (S S RIVERBUR T -
LI A BB RIS BAE L B -

R R it TS

AP BERMAR S 2 B R RIRR24%(— T —T4 ¢
22%) 2 BRGNP Bl A R FRSH o BT
LBR AT REPI AR ER A FESTE
W FE TG BE e B & EEN R SRDERSH
M - Hig = 2 PESHARE - FW$W%
ﬁﬁ@ AREFIRHEYRIRARAT D HIE=

ti&_vqﬂiﬁméﬁm%%ﬁc

m_ggtE*H+AE %+E%ﬁAEﬁ%ﬁ
EFEAREZBBR_TTN\F—A—BHBITH
(hEARLMBE D EAHE m&xr%m&po@*
T N\F—A—Bi  ElEERNBARBRRESF
BE N SR BIZERI5% o RIBFEBHRR =
TEF+ A NHBAMNBIAISHAA -
BHRENBRFESN T —ZFKRIE -

IS
ARAREHEFSATEEREHRETMAKILA
ERRERAR - FHERRHANFASESMS
T RN AMER B IR 2 BF BRI B A B DRI
HERZEBERMERRNEEMAL - EbER
RHRRBERE LB SIS -

R A it R E

PAFRE N3 AK 37 2 BT BIZE R B A it KR S
EmZWMABDRIRI7T%(ZF—FF : 17%) * &
AR E NI ER (BEER]) - BEHOHEE]S
ZEEFREOERTNFTBECEREBI%E13% (=

T—ZTF 9% E13%)) o st E A E FEIGE
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ'%%%§HZﬁﬁ%Eﬁﬂﬁ¢ﬁ%ﬁ
BRI S TEISER -

RIFEHE
Eﬁﬁﬁi = [
AN

ET)\i H—HBi

: é%iﬂ L)
%ﬁ&é%%&ﬁﬁaémmw
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27. Taxation (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to
profits of the consolidated entities and the reconciliation is as follows:

27. WBIE®)
IAREEEHRANENAEZHE - BRAAH
TEIEAER O IEF ARG EMELENER
WMEFEER - HIRMOT

Profit before taxation BRF AR 7 141,819 162,177
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates LHEER SN ER 2

applicable to profits in EHB R E 28

the respective countries 20,854
Expense not deductible for tax purposes AR & A 660
Under provision in previous year LARI [ 25T 2 FR1S TR 1,383
Withholding tax on dividends of the FEMNBARIZREETINZ

PRC subsidiaries RINFTISHL -
Utilization of previously unrecognised AR RIARERNTIE

tax losses (1,581)
Tax losses for which no deferred REERIELEHEEERN

tax asset was recognised T8 1,604 792
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax loss RERIARMERHTE (2,253) -
Tax charge MIEZ H 23,084 22,108

(3

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 13.8% (2010: 13.7%).

Included in the tax losses as at 31 December 2011 was a loss of
RMB18,319,000 (2010: RMB17,398,000) that will expire during the period
from 2012 to 2016 (2010: 2011 to 2015), while other losses can be carried
forward indefinitely. The deferred tax benefit of such tax losses has not been
recognised as it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unutilised tax losses can be utilised, or the amounts
attributable to specific subsidiaries are insignificant.

BERAMEFTHRERAE188% (T —ZTF
13.7%) °

R-E——F+ - f=+—HZHEEEREE
818,319,000 AR (ZE—Z 4 : 17,398,000
TARE)  #EHBER_Z——_FZ_F—RX
F(F2F: T —FE2_F-0F)HE
W B ERA A ERBAE - ARTTETER
REERBEF M A ARE A2 RISEEIEE
R BEERNNB RN RE - Eit b
T EB 2 BT IA A W AR AR o
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28. Net foreign exchange gains
The exchange differences credited/(charged) in the consolidated income
statement are included as follows:

28. EHW=RFEHE

Eaptlmid A/ (R WEL ZEeEE
THEBEA

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T AREBTT

Other (losses)/gains — net (Note 23) Hub($Bk),Mas — 558 (Mi5E23) (5,908) 197
Finance costs — net (Note 26) s A — 5 g (i EE26) 11,602 1,687
5,694 1,884

29. Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company to the extent of RMB5,737,000 (2010:

RMB7,314,000).

30.
Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit attributable to owners
of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Earnings per share

20. HBAFMRAQCREZHERE

BHRBRARRESHEEEN ARG M B R
R EERHEE 55,737,000 AR (—Z 2 —=
F 1 7,314,0007T AREE) o

30. EREF
2

BREABNIRERBRARBESE 24
A BRAFADBITEBRAIMEFERBFE -

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R AREBTT

Profit attributable to owners of the Company BHEBRANEEES 119,058 130,103

Weighted average number of BTSRRI INET I E

ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (F3H) 483,211 465,210

Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) FREREF(ERARE) 24.6 Centsfll 28.0 Centsflll
Diluted wE

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average & R#E® 2 F R 5% P AT B8 1B £ BRI 3

number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The dilutive potential ordinary shares of the
Company mainly comprises the share options. A calculation is made in order
to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average monthly market share price of the Company’s
shares) based on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as above is

- compared with the number of shares that would have been issued assuming.

- the exercise of the share options. : Rt

1k - RIEE BT ERR A0 IOAET R B
A0 A AT B B R B BRI - 1R

R (TR IR 0 IR S (A - T
BARBEETAAAARAOTHARNE)
TEAHRHEE « B EH R HOBRD
5 RESMERGETESEGOREREE
HH LA o " e o
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30. Earnings per share (continued)

Diluted (continued)

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (thousands)

Adjustments assuming the exercise of
share options (thousands)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for diluted earnings per share
(thousands)

Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share)

30. BERERN@®)
w2

BN EERARAF]

Bsx N 1908y 130103
BT mRA
IEF9EE (F&1) 465,210
R B TR Y AR

______ ) W Ass4n 11202
FrESREERFE
BT A hnE

L emECTED) N 4880es 476,502
EREERF(BERARE) 24.4 Centsfll 27.3 Centsflll

31. Dividends

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 of HK3.48
cents per share, totalling approximately of RMB13,635,000, is to be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial statements do not

reflect such dividend payable.

Interim dividend paid of HK1.2 cents
(2010: HKO0.88 cents) per ordinary share

Proposed final dividend of HK3.48 cents
(%0 : _HK3_.8 cents) per ordinary share

3. KRE

REBRITZRRBEFAE L EHEBEE-ZT
——F+ A=+ HILFERRAHRESR
3.48 1l - A ££#713,635,0007T AR % o BF 3R
F SRR PR AR B, o

Bk HI B R A

1.281I(ZF—F4 : 0.88/81ll) 3,583
HIR R S B BE AR 3 488 1l
15,434

(3

(==& : 3.88(l)

19,017
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32. Cash generated from operations

atements

32, REEKELCZES

Profit for the year ARE T 118,735 130,069
Adjustments for: FEIER -
— Taxation (Note 27) — B (M5E27) 23,084 22,108
- Depreciation (Note 7) —E(FIFE7) 31,814 31,207
— Amortisation of: — AR
— Land use rights (Note 6) — T fE AR (K EE6) 231 310
— Intangible assets (Note 8) —ER A E (E8) 9,732 11,096

— Provision for impairment of —EREE R AR (M)

intangible assets (Note 8) 3,499 6,000
— Loss on disposal of property, plant —REME - BEREREZ

and equipment (see below) BiE(R T30 - 4
— Interest income (Note 26) —F B A (F5E26) (4,607) (2,873)
— Interest expense on bank borrowings —RITEERBNERZ

and government loans (Note 26) FER s (H7E26) 24,808 16,466
— Share of loss from an associate (Note 10) —FZ R BENREFIEE10) 59 -
— Realised loss —MEEHR 7 SRBK—F5E

on interest rate swap-net (Note 23) (FfF5E23) 310 668
— Fair value losses —RHNES R

on foreign exchange contract (Note 23) NREEEE(MF23) 2,598 -
— Impairment of available-for-sale financial — A ESREERERE

assets (Note 11) (f3E11) - 200
Operating profit before working capital changes &3& & & & B 2 &£ 2% 210,263 214,869
Changes in working capital: HEESFE)
— Inventories —FE (35,817) (43,313)
— Trade receivables — FEURBR K (71,809) (87,086)
— Prepayments and other receivables — FEAS BRI H A FEURR (28,838) (54,110)
— Pledged bank deposits —BEMRITER (53,027) (30,839)
- Trade payables and bills payable —ENERRENRE 84,677 84,283
- Accruals and other payables —FERTE A R E MR 6,520 (5,594)
Cash generated from operations KWEXBEEZRS 111,969 78,210

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment comprise:

Net book amount (Note 7)
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment <

tREFHE (M7 )
HEME - BELREZ

REaHBRERER - HEVE - BEMREME

FIEEIEATHIE

2011
—=——F

isposal of property,

40 =

L B R R AR

Py



B O IR R

33. Commitments - Group
(a) Capital commitments

33. &AE—£E
(a)

BAENSE

Capital commitments authorised and contracted RIREHAREIFER D ET4

for at end of the reporting period but not yet BARBEEMERFALT ¢
included are as follows:
— Construction-in-progress and property, —HERITRUNYE -
plant and equipment BB K& - 10,590
— Product development projects —EmfA%sE 10,300 12,700
— Land use rights — T 1,915 1,916
12,215 25,205

As at 31 December 2011, the Company has no significant capital
commitments (2010: Nil).

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases certain premises under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements in respect of property, plant and equipment. The lease have
varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. The lease expenditure
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the year is disclosed
in Note 24.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:

RIZB——F+-A=1+—R  ARFAHELIR
BERZERFRE(—T—TF &) -

(b) AEEALNEE
AEERBZOIARENC2HERBZEHERE
FWE - BEREE - ZSHAH 2GR - BEH
BERREBEOEFT— - FRRAFFRER T
ZHERZ M 24 R o

BETTHHGEAS  RRBEEENREHE
T

Not later than 1 year T —F 2,244 3,334
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years fRm—FETBRhE 600 4,006
Later than 5 years BildAF - 12,000

2,844 19,340

é A aprs
N8 gk T EmERA

ST

tT—B  AREHELR

M) o
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34. Contingent liabilities — Group

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company has provided corporate guarantees
to support banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries amounting to
RMB421,543,000 (2010: RMB343,641,000 ) among which RMB167,793,000

(2010: RMB178,663,000) has been utilised by the subsidiaries.

35. Related party transactions

The Company is 40.3% owned by Marietta Limited (incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands) which is owned by Mr. Yang Yirong.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(a) Key management compensation

34. BAEBE-5£H
R-T——F+-A=+—0 - AEEFEETF
FATHARAME -

RNZZE——F+_A=+—8  ARARARRTE
LEffH B8 A B1421,543,000 T AR ( — T —T4F
343,641,000 A R# ) KIIRITRAE REE EH A &)
BR R-B—F+_A=1+—08 WEBAA
EFEARITH Z5E 167,793,000 TARE (==
—Z4F 1 178,663,0007T AREE) ©

3. BHAXS
RAF40.3% R —MERMEEHF 2B
B RS ML 2 A5 —Marietta Limited# & °

HRREE TR ST ¢

(a) HREEASHS

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Salaries and other short-term HeREMEHEE R
employee benefits 6,164 6,529
Total @t 6,164 6,529

(b) Amount due to a director
The details of the amount due to a director are as follows:

(b) EN—UESEFHER
N —(EFFIRNFBET

Mr. Yang Yirong 53R EE &

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
914 962

The amount due to a director was unsecured, non-interest bearing and is

repayable on demand.

BRI EEX RAAEER RERARER

-
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Results 3

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—-HLEE

Non-current assets
Current assets

FRBEE
MBEE

386,327
564,742

Year ended 31 December

444,040
778,620

BEt-A=t-HLEE

453,365
862,757

461,494
1,087,770

Revenue A 612,159 739,973 728,494 908,251 1,074,688
Operating profit eyl 140,119 140,745 137,014 164,083 150,477
Finance costs BARER AN (2,071) (6,776) (16,036) (11,906) (8,599)
Share of loss of an associate JE(REE A EIR - - - - (59)
Profit before taxation FRA A8 A 138,048 133,969 120,978 152,177 141,819
Taxation WIE (7,514) (19,513) (13,296) (22,108) (23,084)
Profit for the year EEHN 130,534 114,456 107,682 130,069 118,735
Dividends B8 19,297 16,818 15,553 19,017 18,395
Profit attributable to: A ERER
Owners of KARHAEE

the Company 130,465 114,237 107,471 130,103 119,058
Non-controlling interests FEFE M R 69 219 211 (34) (323)

130,534 114,456 107,682 130,069 118,735

Financial Positions B #E AR

454,133
1,337,414

Total assets

BE®E

951,069

1,217,660

1,316,122

1,649,264

1,791,547

Total equity R 663,807 748,972 843,985 960,978 1,079,835

Non-current labiities ~ jEn@am 0 58121 242970 111536 195320 | - 120,669
Current liabilities MENBE 229,141 225,718 360,601 392,966 582,043
Total liabilities BEBE 287,262 468,688 472,137 588,286 711,712
ot EaEkERS 951,069 1,217,660 1,316,122 1,549,264 1,791,547
REE A 694,804 755,371

335,601

547,902

502,156
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